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VISION AND MISSION

VISION

Is to achieve and then remain as the most progressive and profitable
Company offering a wide range of quality products and service provider

in terms of industry standards and stakeholders interest.

MISSION

The Company shall achieve its mission through a continuous pracess of

having sourced, developed, implemented and managed the best leading

edge technelogy, industry best practice, human resource and innovative
of superior products, performance and service quality that fully meet
the needs of our customers, better returns to our stakeholders and a

better quality of life to the employees.
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REVIEW REPORT BY THE CHAIRMAN

It Is my privilege to present the Chalrman's Review for the financial yvear ended June 30, 2025, in
campliance with the Companies Act, 2017 and the Listed Companie:s {Code of Caorporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019, This review reflects our continued commitment o

transparency, sound governance, and long-term strategic direction.

During the year, our Company demonstrated resilience and faresight in navigating a challenging
econamic environment, We achieved a record-high turnover, underscaring our ability to adapt
and compete effectively in a dynamic market. However, rising energy costs and persistent
inflation exerted significant pressure on profit margins, highlighting the importance of prudent
cost management and operational efficiency.

Dur dedicatian to the highest standards of governance remains at the core of our business, The
Board af Direclors uphalds transparency, accountability, and integrity while ensuring adherence
te best practices in governance. Robust systems for risk management, internal eantrols, and
regulatory compliance remain firmly in place, reinforcing stakeholder confidence and
ctrengthening our corporate reputation.

Throughout the fiscal year 2024-25, the Board convened four meetings, including sessions of its
audit committes, to ensure effective aversight of business performance and sub-commities
activities. In line with ocur governance framewaork, the Board also conducted its annual self-
evaluation far 2024-25, which praduced satisfactory results, This exercise is critical to assessing
effectiveness and identifying areas for further improvement.

Our Board comprises a diverse mix of independent and non-executive directors, each
cantributing expertise and perspective to informed decision-making. This diversity of skills and
experience ensures that the Company remains well-positioned to achisve its objectives and
create sustainable value.,

In conclusion, | would like to express my heartfelt appreciation to our shareholders, employeess,
and business parlners for their trust and dedication. With your supporl, we will continue Lo
pursue our strategic priorities, strengthen our foundations, and progress with confidence and
integrity,

KHALID JARIL SIDOWH

Karachi Chairman

September 29,2025
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directars of International Enitwear Limited takes pleasure in presenting this report
together with the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 20, 2025,

Financial Performance at a Glance

Operating Results 2025 2024 Increase/{Decrease)
Rupees Rupees Percentage

Met sales 1,210,573,713 BLO, 505,025 42 33%

Gross profit 106,356,166 81,397,783 30.66%

Prafit before income taxes and final 19,297 557 256,780, 3B5 84.08%

taxes

Prafit after income tax A0,E5E 562 11,043,540 179.42%

Met Earnings per share 3.1% 1.14 179 B2rY%

Financial Highlights for the ¥Year Ended June 30, 2025

+ Met Sales reached Rs. 1.21 billion, compared to Rs, 850,50 million in the same period last year
{SPLY), reflecting an increase of Rs, 360.07 million (42.33%)
Gross Profit stood at Rs. 106,35 million, up from Rs. 81,39 million in the previous year,
Profit Before Tax amounted to Rs. 4929 millien, compared to Rs. 26.78 million in the
corresponding period last year.
Profit After Tax rose to Rs, 30085 million, against Rs. 11.04 millicn in SPLY,
Earnings Per Share (EPS) increased to Bs. 3,19, compared to Bz, 1,14 in the previous year,

Business Querview

During the year under review, the Company delivered an outstanding financial performance, with net
tumover reaching Rs. 1.21 billion, compared to Rs, 850.50 million in the corresponding period,
reflecting robust growth of 42.33%, This increase was primarily driven by a substantial rise [n sales
volumes.

Despite challenges such as pricing pressures in export markets, political uncertainty, high financing
costs, and volatile utility prices, the Company successfully expanded arder valumes and fully utilised
its production capacity during FY24-25, Export revenue rose by 13.74%, from Rs. 487.63 million in the
sarme period lasl year Lo Rs. 55666 million. Local sales showed even stronger growlh, increasing by
B0.20%, from Rs. 362 .87 million to Rs. 85391 million during FY25.

This strong performance lifted net sales to Rs. 1.21 billion, up 42,33% year-on-year, demonstrating
the effectiveness of management’s strategic initiatives, including timely investments and an optimal
balance between export and domestic market opportunities.
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Howewer, the sales prowth was partially offset by margin precssares. Gross, operating, and net
profitatility were impacted by higher costs, particularly elevated freight expenses of Rz, 21,30 million
incurred to fulfil an export order shipped wia air to meet buyer commitments. Conseguently, the
gross margin declined to 8.78% compared to 9.57%4 In the corresponding period. On the financial
side, the Company successfully contalnad Its finance costs, which decreased as a percentage of sales
compared 1o last year, mainly due to the reduction in the policy rate,

As a result, profit after tax increased slgnificanthy, reaching Rs, 30,85 million compared to Rs. 11.04
million in the corresponding period.

Earnings per share

Earnings per share after taxXation were Rs. 3.19 as compared to As. 1.14 in last year's earnings for the
sharehalders.

Investment

The Campany generates a significant portion of its investment income fram sustainable sources such
as dividends and capital gains, ensuring a stable revenue stream. Its investment portfolia remains
well-diverafied across multiple sectors, with a primary emphasis on blue-chip stocks offering
attractive dividend yields, bonus distribubions, and strong growth prospects, In addifion, the portfalio
maintains a prudent balance between fixed-income securities and equities, optimising returns while
managing risk. This approach reinforces the Company's prohtability by generating a significant
secondary Income stream.

During the year, other income, primarily comprising dividend income, stood at Rs. 765 million,
compared to B, 549 milllon in the corresponding period, Gainsg on disposal of investments rose 1o
Rs, 2.72 million, from Rs. 0,36 million in the previous year,

Capital Expenditure

The Coampany has consistently maintained a strong track record of inwvesting in new facilities,
equipment, and technologies to support market expanzion and the development of new product
limes. During the year, capital expenditure amounted to Rz 3597 million, compared to Rs. 2276
millign in the previows yvear, reflecting an increase of Bs. 13 .21 million (58.04%).

fManagement remalns committed to enhancing operational capabllities as a cornerstone of long-term
profitability. As part of this approach, the Company has prioritised investmerts in renowable enorgy
to counter rising energy costs. In line with this strategy. a salar power project with a rated capacity of
250 KW was successfully cammissianad during the year.

This transitdon to renewable energy Is expected not only to mitigate the financlal impact of escalating
anergy costs but also to reinforce the Company's commitmeant o sustainability and responsible
bBuUsSiness practices,

Dividend

Considering our strategic investments, the business's future working capital needs, and the Company’'s
cash-generating capability, the Board of Directors is pleased to recommend a final cash dividend of 10%,
equivalent to PKR. 1.0 per share, forthe year ended June 30, 2025.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Future Outlook

The Company is positioned Tor sustainable profit growth amid a promising domestic economic
landscapes of receding inflation and monstary easing. This positive outlook is offset by notable
challenges, including climate wolatility linked to global warming. Events such as monsaon floods can
impact supply chains, ravw material costs, and local consumer demand. On the intermatonal front,
trade continues to face multiple challenges, including subducd global demand and geopalitical
tensions. I this comples environment, a key focus will be on leveraging diversificd operations and
robust risk managemont to mitigate supply-side disruptions and navigate fluctuations In local
demand, thereby securing profitability amid both global and domestic uncertainties,

Looking ahead, the Board of Directors and management are commited to further strengthening
financial performance through cost efficiencies and operational improvermerts. These initiatives aim
to maxirnize shareholder returng and reinforce stakeholder confidence.

Material Changes
There have been no material changes and no significant commitments made after the end of the
financial yvear up to the date of this report, which could affect the Company’s financial position.

Corporate Environmeant, Health & Social Responsibility

Wie are firmly committed to maintaining the highest standards of health, safety, and environment
{HEE) to protect our emploveses and the communities where we operate. Our foremost priority is the
continuous enhancement of safety measures across production, storage, deliverny, and material
handling. The Company also remains dedicated to environmental stewardsnip and sustainability in
every asipect aof its operations.

Materiality Approach

The determinaticon of materiality levels is inherently subjective, with methodologies differing across
arganisations. At our Campany, authorisation of transactions and delegation of powers ara
astablished through formal, documented proceduras. The Company operates under a Board-
approved materiality palicy, which is reviewsad annoally o ansure ongoing compliance, afactivensss,
and relevance.

Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework

In compliance with the provisicons of the listng regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange, the Board
members are pleased to place the following statements on record:

The financial statemants, préparad by the management of the Company, presaent Tairly its state of
alfairs, the result of its operations, cash Mlows, and changes in eguity;

& The Company maintains proper books of accounts;

m  The Chiel Executive and Chiel Financial Officer duly endorsed the financial statements bafore
approval of the Board;

= Appropriate accounting palicies have been consistently applied in the pregaration of financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;

& International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, are followed in the
preparation of financial statements,

= The system of intarnal control is sound in design and has baen effectivaly implemented and
monitored;

& There are no doubts upon the company’s ability to cantinde as & galng concern.

= There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as
detailed in the listing regulations.

& A summary of key operational and financial data for the last six years is annexed in this annoal
repart,

®  Information about taxez and levies is given in the notes to and forming part of financial
statements.

e The valuation of investment made by the staff retirement Provident Fund (Audited) as at Junes
30, 2025 was s, 9,738,626,
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND ITS COMMITTEES

COMPOSITION OF THE BEOARD

In line with the reguirements of the Regulabions, the Company encourages reprasentation of
independant and non-executive directors, as well as gender diversity on its Board. The current
composition of the Board is as follows:

TOTAL NUMBER OF DIRECTORS:

(al nale: &
(b} Fermale: 1

COMPOSITION:

R Independent Direclors: 3
ii. Mon-Executive Directors: 2

ii. Executive Directors; 2

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
1 EKhalid Jarmil Siddig

Maeem Shafi

Wasaem Shafi

Javed Khan

Abhdullah Ahsan Saleam
Saleha hajid
Muhamimacd Shafi

= Mo AWK

COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMPAITTEE

1 Abdullah Ahgan Saleem
2 Khalid lamil Siddigi
3  Saleha Majid

COMPOSITION OF HR & REMUMERATION COMMITTEE

1 EKhalid lamil Siddigi
2  HNasem Shafi
3 Javed Ehan

COMPOSITION OF RISK MAMNAGEMEMT COMMITTEE

1 HNaeem Shafi
2 Javed Ehan
3 Abdullah Ahsan Saleam

COMPOSITION OF MOMIMNATION COMMITTEE

1 Haeem Shafi
2 Khalig Jamil Siddigi
3 Mubammad Shafi

8

Chairman Independent
Chief Executive Officer Executive
Directar MNon-Executive
Director Executive
Director Inclependent
Director Independent
Director Mon-Executive

Chairman

PAerriber

rAermibeer

Chairman

rermbeer

rAermiber

Chairman

tember

Membeer

Chairman

Member

rember
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COMPOSITION OF BANKING COMMITTEE

1  Abdullah Ahsan Saleem Chairman
2  Haeem Shafi M erribeer

3 Javed Khan M Erriber

COMPOSITION OF SHARES TRAMNSFER COMMITTEE

1 Waseem Shafi Chairman
2 Javed Khan Member

3  Saleha Majid fember

Meeting of the Board and its Commitlees

During the year, four meetings of Board of Directors [BOD), four mestings of Audit Committee {AC)
and one meeting of Human Resource and Remuneration Committee [HERC] were held. The
attendance of the Directors and the number of their directarship in listed companies, including
International Knitwear Limited, is as follows:

Executive | Committes Attendance
Sr. | MName of Directors | Directar Status Directors  Members | ) |
Mo ship AC | HRRC BOD | AC HRRC
1 | Mr. Khalid Jamil 1 Re-elected w.e.f Mo a/a | afa | 11
Siddigi 27-10-2024
2 | pr. Maeem Shafi 2 Re-elected w.e.f Yes 44 R 1/1
27-10-2024
3 | Mr. Waseem Shafi 1 | Re-elected w.e.f Yes 24
27-1p-2024
4 | pAr. Javed Khan 1 | Re-elected w.e.f Yes a/4 TS
27-1p-2024
5 | Br. Abdullah Ahsan 1 Re-elected w.ef M 474 | 474 -
Saleem 27-10-2024
G| M5 Saleha Majid 1 Re-elected w.ef Me 3/4 | 374 -
2T-10-2024
7| mr. Buhammad 1 | Re-elected w.e.f M | 4/4 - -
Shafi 27-10-2024

Management Committeea

The Management Committee, led by the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) and comprising senior
management, supports tmely and informed decision-making across the Campany. Acting in an
advizary role to the CED, it reviews business aperations, budgets, and long-term strategies, while
manitaring perfarmance against targets through monthly meetings. The CEQ ensures that Board
decisians and directives are effectively communicated and implamented throughout the
arganization,
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Evaluation Criteria for the Board
In addition to discharging their statutory responsibilities, the performance of the Company's Board is
regularly evaluated at both the individual and collective levels, based an the following criteria:

1. Promotion of diversity in gender, talents, skills, and perspectives;

Integrity, credibility, trustworthiness, and active participation of memaoers;

Muonitoring and reviewing progress against annual targets set by management;

Provision of strategic guidance and direction to the Company;

Ability to identify and address arezs requiring performance improvemeant;

Rewview and oversight of management succession planning;

Agsessment and understanding of the Company's risk exposures;

Contribution to strengthening policies and practices relating to healh, safety, environment,
employment, and ather key areas;

8. Commitment to safeguarding the Company from aveldable litigation 2nd reputational risks,

0O =] M W B L R

Performance Evaluation of the Board

The Board's overall performance for the year, evaluated against the prescribed criteria, has been
found satisfactory. In compliance with 3action 192 of the Companies Act, 20107, a detailed report by
the Chairman on the Board’s performance is presented in this &nnual Report.

Director's Remuneration
The Board of Directors has approved the Directors’ Remuneration Policy, which includes the
following key provisions:

1. Noremuneration shall be paid to non-executive or independent directors, other than meeting
fees for attending meetings of the Board and its Committees.

2. The Company shall bear or reimburse directors’ travel and accommodation expenses incurred
in connection with attending Board and Committee meatings.

3. The Directors’ Remuneration Policy shall be subject to periodic review and approval by the
Board of Directors.

Pattern of Shareholding
A statement showing a pattern of shareholdings of the Company and additional Information as at
June 30, 2025, is included in the report.

Auditors

The retiring auditors, M /s RSN Avais Hyder Liaguat Mauman, Chartered Accountants, being eligible,
hawve offered themselves for reappointment. On the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the
Board of Directors proposes their reappointment as auditors of the Company for the financial year
ending June 30, 2026, on such remuneration as may be fixed by the Board in consultation with the
Audit Committee, subject to the approval of the sharehaolders at the Annual General Meeting.

10
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Directors’ Training Program

Four Directors have completed the Directors” Training Program, while twa Directors, having over 25
years of experience serving on the Boards of listed companies, are exempt from this reguirement.
The Company intends to arrange the mandatory training for the remaining Directors in the next fiscal
year. The Board is adequately equipped to discharge its responsibilities, and the Directors are fully
aware of their duties, powers, and obligations under the Companias Act, 2017 and the Pakistan Stock
Exchange Rule Book,

Acknowledgement

The Board places on record its sincere appreciation to the executives, officers, staff members, and
workers for their dedication, hard work, and commitment, which have contributed significantly to
the Company's performance. The Board also extends its gratitude to the Company’s bankers,
custemers, and suppliers for their confinued support and cooperation. The Management remains
confident that these valued relationships will be further strengthened in the years ahead.

For and an behalf of the Board

JAVED KHAN NAEEM SHAF|
Karachi: September 29,2025 Director Chief Executive
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SUMMARY OF KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA OF
SIX YEARS AT A GLANCE

Below is a summary of key operating and financial results for six years and includes the financial results for the year under
review:

2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

000"
ASSETS EMPLOYED
Property, plant and equipment 97,333 73,514 60,017 53,236 35,983 35,942
Long-term investments 29,907 28,025 20,394 20,8€7 16,979 14,478
Long-term deposits 1,500 1,500 1,500 2,082 2,057 2,062
Short-term investments 42,614 31,485 20,006 17,433 16,781 8,206
Met current assets 68,180 63,411 73,075 67,514 71,626 12410
Total assets employed 197 248 167,312 158,307 144 5% 127481 136,512
FINANCED BY
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 96,750 96,750 96,750 96,750 596,750 96,750
Reserve and un-appropriated profit &5,006 f1,404 60,035 45,218 23,133 28,020
Gain / {Loss) on revaluation of investments 12,647 9,157 1,521 1,945 ans (982}
Shareholder's equity 194403 167311 158306 1435813 120,788 123,788
Long term and deferred liabilities 3,444 - - B2 6,603 12,723
Total capital employed 197,847 167,311 158306 144555 127481 136,511
Sales 1,210,573  B50505 611488 670,262 488,080 537457
Profit before income taxes and final taxes 49 297 26,780 37,130 27585 6,620 16,865
Profit/ (loss) after Income tax 30,858 11,043 22,073 22,084 (50) 7,735
Earnings/[loss| per share 319 114 218 1,18 {0.01) 050
Return an turnover 2.55% 1.30% 361% 31.2%% {0.1%] 1.40%
Return an capital emplayed 15.87% 6.60% 13.94% 15.35% (0.04%] 5.60%
Dividend
Cash {%) 10% 7.5% 10% 7.5% 0% 5%
Stock (%] 0% 0% 0% 0% 0 0%

12
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KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Liquidity Ratios

Current Ratio

Cuick Ratio

Cash to Current Liabilithes
Current Assets to Total Assets
Inventory [/ Current Assets
Imventory to Total Assets
Profitability Ratios

Gross Profit Margin

Operating Prafit Margin

Profit Befare Taxztion Margin

Met Profit Margin

Finadal Charges to Net Income
Feturn on Assets

Return on Equity

Dbt to Equity Ratio

Activity Ratios

Average No of Days Inventory in Stock
Accounts Receivable Turnover
Tatal Assets Turnover

Leverage

Interest Coverage Ratio

Fived Aszets to Equity
Investment /Market Value
Break-up Value

Price Earning Ratio

Dividend Payout Ratio

Market Value Per Share at End of The
Year

Share Price - High During the Yaar

Share Price - Low During the Year

uonm

Tirmes
Times
Tirmes

E-

ES

E G - - -

Days
Times
Tirmes

Times
Times

Times

Jun-25

111
0.83
0.00
B402
215,66
2156

g.79
5.68
407
255
8540
380
15.87
31736

&8
5.07
157

2,50
Q.50

20,09
b.41

M.23

21.74
1.

Jun-24

1.20
0.43
0.0
78.47
84.31
3046

LY
5.52
315
1.30
25684
219
b.60
1E8B.45

L) |
18.58
1,08

2.01
0.44

17,29
15.17

65,79
13.17

17.00
12,50

Jun-23

143
0.63
0.01
7513
5556
41.74

13.20
71
6.07
361

5813
£.80

1394

111.37

i1
038

16,36
7118

43,86
13.50

13.80
2.30

Jun-22

125
0.78
0.02
8148
134
30.41

£91
523
411
3,29
6526
531
1535
18910

15
6.96
1.86

.06
0.37

1487
0,55

3.83
1000

1450
400

Jun-21

141
o
0.00
gL58
LENE]
40,58

827
372
1.3
{0.01)
(35,314.00)
{0.02)
{0.04)
151.18

115
12.61
158

140
.30

1248
(1,318.00)

1436

1995
1240

Jun-20

148
0.56
001
83.00
61.83
5132

454
5.55
3.14
1.44
172.00
248
6.25
152.06

105
12.20
1.82

2.36
0.9

12,79
17.64

62.50
16.50

18.50
1200
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GRAPHICAL PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL ANALYSES
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GRAPHICAL PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL ANALYSES
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

BOARD OPERATIONS AND DECISION-PMMAKING

The Board of Directors, as stewards of shareholder
interests, ansures affective governance and leng-
term sustainability of the Comparny The Board
performs its funchions by:

« Providing strategic Buidance to

management;
= Setting performance benchmarks; and

« Monitoring and reviewing performance
outcomes.

The Board's primary responsibility is to protect
and enhance shareholder wvalue, It s actively
aengaged in formulating and reviewing strategies,
satting annual objectives and financial targets, and
overseaing the Company's operations in light of
amarging risks and opportunities,

Furthermore, the Board is  enfrusted  with
maintaining a comprehansive system of internal
controls,  policy frameworks, and corporate
governance practices. It is also accountable for risk
management and for periodically reviewing Lhe
effectiveness  of these systems to  ensure
complianoe and sound governance,

DECISIONS TAKEN BY THE BOARD

In accordance with the Companies Act, 2017 and
the Listed Companies (Code of Corparate
Governance) Regulations, 2019, meetings of the
Board of Directors are convened guarterly, At
thesse meaatings, all significant and matarial
matters are placed before the Board for due
consideration and approval.

Where urgent approwvals are required, such
matters are resolved through circular resolutions,
duly signed by all directors, The Company’s palicy an
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mateariality defines the nature and thrashoeld of
transactions that gualify &= significant or material,
thereby reguiring subwmission Lo the Board for
approval or ratification.

Furthermare, the Board delegates specific
functions and responsibiliies to its Committees in
ling with their approved Terms of Reference,
ensuring effective oversight and decision-making
in specialised areas,

DECISIONS DELEGATED TO MANAGEMENT

fanagement is responsible for implementing the
strategies and policies approved by the Board of
Directors. |ts rale includes effectvely and ethically
managing the day-to-day operations of the
Coampany in alignment with the Boards wision,
ohjectives, and approved goals. Management is
also tasked with identifying and managing key
risks and opportunities that may impact the
Company in the normal course of businass.

ABNMNUAL EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, ITS
MEMBERS, AND ITS COMPITTEES

In campliance with the requiremernts of the Code
of Corporate  Gowernance, the Board has
established a structured mechanism for the annual
evaluation of its perfarmance, as well as that of its
members and commiltess. The evaluation is
conducted against well-defined criteria, focusing
on the fallowing areas:

+« Board Composition: Knowledge,
experignce, diversity, size, independence,

and succession planning Lo ensure effective

ROVETNENCE,
« Board and CEO Compensation:
Competitiveneass and fairness af

remuneration policies for the Board, its

committees, and the CEQ.
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Strategic Planning: Contribution to
effective risk managerment and monitoring
performance against strategic objectivas,

Board Procedures:

efficiency, and overall effectivenass of

Transparency,

Board processes.

Board Information: Adequacy  and
timeliness ot information provided to the
Board and its committess,

Board and Committees' Effectiveness:
Performance, efficiency, and contribution
af the Board and its commitless,

Chalrman and CEQ Effectivenass:
Evaluation of leadership, effectiveneass, and
performance of the Chairman and CEQ,

Control Environment: Ohrarsight of
financial reporting, including adeguacy of
internal controls.

Ernvirenmental, Sacial, and Governance
{ESG): Commitmeaent to FS6 Initatives and
pragrass made an sustainability goals,

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

In accordance with the Listed Companies [Code of

Corpaorate Governance) Regulations, 2019, and the
Articles of Association of the Company, the Board
of Directors has approved a remuneration policy
far non-exdecutive directars, including independent
directors, The salient features of the policy are as
fallows:

-

Mo remuneration shall be paid to non-
executive directors (including independent
directors) other than meeting fees for
attending meetings of the Board and its
commitiees.

The amount of meeting fees shall be
determined and approved by the Board of
Drirectors from Lime to time,

Directors shall be reimbursed for all travel,
hoarding, lodging, and related expenses
incurred in connection  with attending
Board meetings, committee meetings, or
genaral meatings of the Company.

ROLE OF CHAIRMAMN

The Chairman leads the Roard of Directors,
ersuring it funchions effectively and in the
hest  interests  of  sharehalders,  The
Chairman sets the agenda for Board
meetings, guides discussions, and ensures
that directors hawve the necessary
infarmation ta make infarmed declsions,

ROLE OF CEQ

The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) manages
the day-to-day operations of the Company
in line with the strategies approved by the
Board. The CECQ is  responsible  for
implementing  business plans, achieving
parformance targets, managing risks, and
maintaining effective communication with
shareholders, regulators, and  other
stakehalders, The CEO  alse promoiaes
ethical walues and good governance
throughout the oganization.

BRIEF TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE
BOARD & BOARD COMMITTEES

AUDIT COPMMITTEE

The Audit Committes comprises three
Mon-Executive Directars and is chalred by
an Independent Director, The Company
Serralary Served 29 its secratary

17
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The Committes meets at least four bmes
annually.

Key Terms of Reference:

Review of financial statements priaor to
Board approval;

Rewview of preliminary announcements of
results before publication;

Facilitation of ewsternal awdits and
discussion of key audit findings, in the
absence of management where required;

Review of management letters issued by
external auditors and management's
response;

Owersight aof the intarnal audit function,
including audil scope, plan, and adeguacy
of resources;

Recommendation of external  auditors’
appointment, remioval, fees, and
permissible non-audit services;

Safeguarding of Company assets;
Any other matter delegated by the Board.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (HRRC)

The HRRC comprises an  Independent
Diractor, one Mon-Executive Director, and
the Chief Executive Officer, with the
Independent Director serving as Chair. The
Director Human Resources acts as
secretary.

Key Terms of Reference:

Adoption and rewview of HR  and
remuneration policies in line with laws and

regulations;

Recammendations o selection,
evaluation, compensation, and succession
planning of key executives (CEQ, CFO,
Company Secretary, Head of Intarnal Audit
& Compliance, and other senlor officers);

Owversight of remuneration frameworks to
ensure alignment with performance;

Review of HRE management policies,
successian  planning, recruitment, and
retention practices;

Monitaring of workplace health and safety
programs.

BAMNKING COMMITTEE

The Committee camprizes an Independent
Director, one Execative Direclor, and the
CED, chaired by the Independant Director.

Key Terms of Reference:

Approving chamges to the banking
signatory mateix;

Approving establishment, enhancement, or
cancellation of banking facilities;

Signing agreements related to banking
Eransachions;

Authorizing exerution of service

agresments with banks,
RISK MANAGEMENT COMPMITTEE

The Committee camprises an Independent
Diirector, one Mon-Executive Director, one
Executive Director, and the CEQ, chaired by
the Independent Director

Key Terms of Reference:

Approving  and  reviewing the risk
management framework and policies;




[nternational Knitwear Limited

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Aszecsing the adeguacy of risk
management systems;

Evaluating the Company's risk exposure
and tolerance levels;

Feviewing management-identified risks
and mitigation measuras;

Reviewing internal controls relating to risk
management;

Supporting the Board in policy formulation
o risk.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee ensures the
Board is composed of gualified individuals
with diverse expertise.

Key Terms: of Reference:

Recommmending candidates for Board
membership:

Reviewing Board structure, size, and
COMMPOSMTomn;

Recommending appaintments of
commilles members and chalrpersons,

SHARE TRANSFER COMMITTEE

The Committee caomprises three members
appointed by the Board, with one serving
as Chairparson. The Company Secretary (or
nomineea) acts as secretary.

Key Terms of Reference:

Reviewing and appraving all share transfer
requests i line  with  Articles  of
Association,  3ECP rules, and  stock
exchange requirements;

verifying transfer documents and ensuring
compliance;

Resolving disputes or objections relating to
share transfers;

Maintaining accurate records of share
transfers;

Coordinating with the Registrar and
Transfer agent;

Reporting to the Board on  transfer
activities  and  presenting  an annhual
SLTImAry,

SIGMIFICANT POLICIES & OTHERS

SOCIAL AND ENVIRDNMENTAL
RESPOMNSIBILITY

International Enitwear is committed to
protecting the enveronment and ensuring
sustalnable operations. Guided by its
Ernvironment, Health, and Safety {(EHS)
palicy, the Company strives ta:

haintain a sale and healthy workplace;
hdinimise adverse environmental impacts;
Consarve energy and natural resources;

Integrate health, safety, and enviropmeant
into business planning,

Educate employeeas and engage
stakeholders;

Ensure full legal compliance.
SUCCESSION PLAMNNING

The Beard and senicr  management
caonduct  annual Talent Management
Reviews (TRMRs) to identify successors for
key roles, ensuring leadership continuity
and diversity. Flans are in place for “Ready

AF

My and “Ready Future” successors

across all organisational levels.
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WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY = “SPEAK UP™

The Campany encourages employess and
stakehaolders o report cohcerns in good
faith withaut fear of retaliation. Reparts
can be made confidentally wia email,
telephone, aor online. All cases are
investigated fairly, and retaliation is stricthy
prahibited.

SAFETY OF RECORDS

The Company ensures compliance and
securily in recaord-keeping through:

Digital and physical Backups of key records;

Confidentiality amd S0P-based

management of dacuments;

Real-time data backup at on-site and off-
site locations.

SUSTAINABILITY & SOCIAL IMPACT
STRATEGY

Environmental Initiatives: Energy
efficiency, water conservation, wasta
management, and carbon footprint
reduction.

Social Initiatives: Compliance with labour
laws, safe workplaces, diversity, inclusion,
wOFTEn 'S & I O T TTEEnt, and SR
programs In education, healthcare, and
livelihoods.

Gowvernance |nitiatives: Anti-corruption
practices, supply chain transparency, and
sustainability gOowvernance owersight.
Sustainable Products: Use of eco-friendly
materials, innovative design for durability,
and reduced waste.

ANTIFHARASSMENT POLICY

The Coampany proamotes a  respectful
wharkp lace fres frorm

discrimination, bullying, or misconduct,

harassment

F

Cowers all employees, contractors, and
stakeholders;

Provides reporting channels [supervisors,
HER, hotline];

Ensures fair, confidential investigations,
Stricthy prohibits retaliation;

Mandates awarcntss:  and  training far
emplayees;

Enforces  disciplinary  action,  including
termination for vialabions,

RELATED PARTY TRAMSACTIONS

The Board-approved policy ensures  all
related party transactions are:

Reviewed and approved as per Section 208
of the Companies Act, 2017;

Canducted on an arm’s length basis and
tair commmercial terms;

Periodically  reviewed by the  Audit
Cammittee.

GENDER PAY GAP STATEMENT{as per SECP
Circular 10 of 2024)

Fer the year ended Jlune 30, 2025:
Mean Gender Pay Gap:14.66%
Median Gender Pay Gap:{4.2 Hio)

The Company ensures eqguitable pay for
female employees in line  with  their
qualifications, rales, and perfarmance, and
remains committed to minimising the gap.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF INTERNATIONAL KNITWEAR LIMITED A, Progessne Mizs, Resuanc Puad
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements Farih, Rk
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Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of InternationalKnitwear Limited (the
Company), which comprise the statement of inancial position as at June 30, 2025, and the
statement of profit or loss, the statement of other comprehensive income, the statement
of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and ta the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, thestatement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in eguity and the statement of cash
flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true
and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at June 30, 2025 and of the profit and
comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (1SAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsihilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants ofPakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our ocpinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Following are the key audit matlers:
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fRefer note Sto the Anonciol
stotemants)

Oy o The  significamce of
imventory balances and
related estimations involwed,
thiz iz considered as a key
audit matter.

5. ey Audit Watters Haoww the matter sras addressed in our aodit
R 1) |
1. Hewonue rur audit procodures inclhuded the

(Refer rote 1900 the fircncion Fesllonwarirug -

STETEantEs ) CObhtained an understanding of the process
relatimng Lo recopEniticon ol reveroes aod

[NaT= CoOrmpany Echneratos testng the design, Implementaton  and

revenue from sale to oxport cporating offectivencss of key  imtermal

as well as local customers, Wde controls

considerad P rLe

FECCHE T O as ke audit ~Performed test of details on a sample basis

matter as it is one of the key with underlyving documaentations [=3%)

performance  indicators  and inspecting and comparing customer arders,

bocause of the potential risk daelivery challans, bkill of lading (in case of

that rewvenue may  not e expport sales), invoices and other related

recorded in the appropriate cdocumaents,

period,
sCompared sample of revenus transactions
recorded arocound the year end with the
sales orders, ales imwolces, iz liv ey
docurmaents and other relegvant umderiying
clocumentation  to  enswure that  revenoes
paertains T The appropriate acoounting
peEriod,
sErnsured the adequacy of disclosures in
accordance wiLh Applicable Finamcial
Reportfing Framework and the Companies
Ak, 2017

2. Stock in tradse our audit procedures included the

Followerirge:

=Obtaimned an wunderstanding of internal
cantrals owver purchases and wvaluation of
stock imn trade and tested, on a sample
Basis, their design. implementation and
operating effectveness.
=attendedphysical imventory COLIrt
perforimed by the Campany.

Obtained and reviewed the inventary
count report of The management and
asscssedits accuracy on a sample bhasis,

Ensuring that proper pravision has beon
made for  =low moving, oboolete  and
cdamagod Inventory o Itoms sclling below
[l 1)

-Performed NRWV test to ensure that the
inventory s walued at lower of cost and
MR,
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INDEFENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT Chartased Acrrmmie
TO THE MEMBERS OF INTERNATIONAL KNITWEAR LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thercon

rAanagement is responsible for the other information. The other Information comprises the
infarmation included in the apnual report, but does nat include the financial staterments and
our auditor's reports thereon

Dur apinicn an The fnancial statements does not cover tThe ather intaormation and we do ot
esrxpress any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility € o read the
other information and, in doing so, comsider whether the other intormation (s materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained n the audit or
olherwrine mppears Lo be rmaterially rmisslated,

I, based on the work we hawve performmed, we conclude that there 15 & material
misstatemeant of this other information, we are reguired o reporl that Tack, We hawve
naothing to report im This regard.

Rasponsibilities of PManagameant and Board of Directors for the Financial Statemeants

Management 15 responzsible for the preparation and fair presesntation of the financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reportinge standards as apoplicable in
Pakistan and the reqgquirements of the Companies &ct, 2017 (XX of 2017) and for such
internal control as managemeaent determines is necessary to enakble the preparation of the
fimnancial statemants that are free from material misstatemaent, whether due to fraud or
f<lay=18

Im prepadringe the Anancial statements, manapgermeEnt s responsible for assessinge the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to poine comncern and using the poineg concern basis of accounting unless Mmanagement esither
Intends to llguidate the Company o to coase oparations, o has no Fealistic alternative Dot
to do so.

The Board of directors are responsible for oversecing the Company’'s financial reporting
Process,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statemants

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
An @ owelbasle are Tree Troerm rmalerial misstatermend, whether doe Lo Traod or error, and Lo issue
an auditor’'s report that mcludes owur opinion Reasconable assuranoe 15 a hgh level of
assurance, but is nmot a guaranteese that an audit conducted in accordance with 1585 as
applicable i Pakistan will always detect a material misstatermant  when it exists,
Fisstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered materal if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
wsers taken on the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an awudit in accordance with 15As as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise
profescional judgment and Mmaintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

-ldentify and asseas the risles of material misstatement of the financial atatements, whether doe
toy frauad o crror, desigen amnd perfoom aodil procedoares responsive o those risks, and obiain
nudit evidenee thot s sufMicient and appropriate (o provide o bagis for oor opinion. The riske of
not detecting o material misstatemnent resulting froan frawud is higher than for one resulting frome
error, as fraod may involve collusion,  forgeny, intentional omissiaons, misrepresentations,
of The override of internal control.

Cbptain an understanding of interfnal control relevant o the audit in order o design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circomstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on The eflfactiveness of the Company™s internal control.

-Evaluate the appropriateness ol aocoounting policies used and the reasopableness ol
Aaccounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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TO THE MEMEBERS OF INTERNATIONAL KNITWEAR LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Conclude on the oppropriatencss of management's use of the going concern basis of
aecounTing and, Based o The audit svidence obtained, whether @ material uncertainty axiarts
related Lo events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability o
continue oz a going concern. If we conclude that & material dncermalnty exists, e are
recquiredd o drawve atbertiorn ire cur auditor™ report to Ehee relatedd disclosures in the financial
staterments or, If such disclosures are Inadequate, to modify our opinion. Cor conclusions
are based on the audil evidence obiained up o the date of our audilors report. Howewar,
future events or conditons Mmay cause the Company to coease to continue as & golnEg concer.
sEvaluatas rhe owverall pressntatdon, structure and contant of the financial statemeants,
imcluding the disclosures, amd wwheither the fnamncial staterments repressmt the amdeelying
transactions and cvoents In & manner that achieves falr prescntation.

Yie communiicote with the booard of directors regarding,. among other matters, the planmned
scoppe: amd thmilng of the aodit amd signiflcant audit findings, ncluding any signiflcant
de=liciencies in internal contral tThat wwe identiTy during our soadi

Wie also provide the board of directors with a statement that we hawe complieod with
ralayant athical reguireameaents regarding indepandence, anmnd B0 communicate with Eheaem all
relaticonships and ather matters that may reascnalkly be thought to bBoear ol our
imdependence, and whers apphicable, related safesoards

Fram the matters communilcatoed with the board of dircctors, vwe dotermine those mattors
that ware of most signifcance In the audit of the Anancial statements of the current woear
and are therefore the key aodit matters, We describe thoese maetters in owur aoditor’s report
wnless law or regulaton preciudes pubilic disclosure about Bhe matter or wehen, T ewbre ey
rare circumalances, we determine that a matter shoald mot Be cormmmuanicated in oo repord
bBecause the adwverses consequences of doing so would reasonably be sepectesd o outwees i gh
the public intereast hanefits of such communicaTon.

Report on Jther Lagal and Regulatory Reguirarmants
EBasad on our audit, we further repart that in owur opinion:

ay proger books ol accoun® have Desn ket by tThe Company as reguired by the Companies
A, FOLF (MK of 2017F):

B the stateimant of fAnancial pesitian, the statecment of prafit or lass, the statement of athar
comprehensive income, the statement of changes In equity and the statement of cash
flowws together with the notes thersaon have beEsen dravwn up i conformiiby saeith the
Companies Act, P2O0L1LF (¥ of 200 7) and are in agresment wseith the books of account amc
FELLIrrE;

G imvwoestrments mode, expenditure incurred and puarantees extended during the yeor wwere
Tor tha purposa of thoe Company’'s Businoss; and

dj zakat deductible at source under The Takat and Ushr Oradinance, 1980 (30001 of 199850}, was
deductad by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established wunadar
cectiorn T of that Ordinance.

The enpapcrmuwent pactmer on the osodit o resoltine on this andependent soaditor™s repoct s
Syed Maveed Abbas.

UM o %M'.?M
Chartered Accountants

Karachi.
Date: October 01, 2025

UDIN: AR202510239btxD2wLOY
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT JUNE 30,2025

2025 2024
BSSETS Maote Rupees Rup&es
Mon-Current Assets
Froperty, plant and equipmeant 5 S9,33305) #3,514, 795
Long term deposits & 1,500,000 1,500,000
Long term loan and sdvances 1 S27 500 261,000
Long term investments i 29,307 652 28,025 260
1259, 66& 250 103 901,055
Current Assels
Stack in trade & 174,951 260 243 5487 255
short tarm Investmants F 12,614 407 32,485,108
Trade debts - considered good @ A424,314.500 53,207,686
Shaort term loans and advances ia 5,331 066 6,306,459
Other receivables 11 15,134,391 25,279,007
Taxation = net 15,705 936 14,609 853
Cash and bank balances iz 2,646 910 3,272.1247
BELlEOL4TD 378,707,754
TOTAL ASSETS El1l,364. 738 482,608,506
ECQLITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAFITAL AMD RESERVES
Authorised Capital
20,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 2000, 0600, 000 200 0
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 13 S5, 750000 6, 50,000
Revenue Reseres
Unappropriated profit 85,006 606 ol 404, 1594
181,756 605 158,154,794
Capital Resarves
Unrealized gain on revaluation of investments - FWTOCI 12, 647 282 9,157 568
124 403 858 167,311,862
Mon-Current Liabilites
Deferred Liabilities - Deferred Tazation Liabillty 14 3444 616
3444616
Current Liabilities
Short term finance under mark-up arrangement - Secured 15 402 871536 142,299,173
Creditors, accrued and other labil itbes 165 208132871 170,699,762
Unclaimed dividend 2511823 2,298,013
613,516 230 315,296,950
Contingencles and Cammitments 18 - -
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES E11,364 738 482 608 B09

The arnexed nates 1 te I8 form an infegral part of these fnancial stotements

I ;.ﬂ" f{-ﬁ:'_"'-cl‘-v
I e

KHALID JAMIL SIDOIGQI MAEEM SHAFI JAVED HHAMN
Chairman Chief Executive Directar ! CFD
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Met zales
Cost of goods sold

Gross profit
Administrative and selling expenses
Operating profit

Other income
Unrealized gain on revaluation of investments through PEL

Fimamece cost
Other charges

Profit hefare income taxes and final taxes
Taxation - Final taxes
Profit before income tax

Taxation - Incoame Lax
Current - for the year
Priar year

Deferred Tax

Profit after Incame tax

Earninas per share - basic and diluted

The annexed notes 1 ta 38 form an integral part af these financial statements.
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Chalrman
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2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
1,210,573,713 850,505,023
11,104,217 ,547) (789,107, 248)
106,356,166 81,397,783
(37,646,154} (34,432 B73)
68,709,982 46,914,310
11,401,211 4,943,401
2,270,783 5,270,575
13,671,924 10,213,976
82,381,976 57,128,886
{29,438, 850) (28,363,703)
{3,645 ,568) (1,984,757)
{33,084 418) (30,348 500)
49,297,557 26,780,386
(1,004,213} {1,273,875)
48,293,344 25,506,511
{14,605 998} (9,353,314)
- (5,109,656)
(2,828,784] -
{17.434,782) (14,462,970)
30,858,562 11,043,541
3.19 1.14

MAEEN SHAFI

Chief Executive

3
ol al A —
"‘ - g

JAVED KHAN
Directar ! CFO




[nternational Knitwear Limited

STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Note

Profit after taxation for the year
Items that will be subsequently reclassified to statement of profit or loss

Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to statement of profit or
loss

Unrezlised gain on remeasurement of investments classified as FYTOC! -
net of tax

Reclzssification of OCI component on dispesal of FVTOC Investment
directly into equity

Defered tax 14

Total comprehensive income for the year

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral pavt of these finoncial statements.

L]

U5

025 2024
Rupees Rupees
30,858 562 11,043,541
3,820,947 7,634,203
284,593 2,173
(615,832}
3,480,714 7,636,376
34,348 276 18,679,917

::,."':Nr" 'l.s:'-u.‘-'ﬂ-'
l_"::. _—— -‘—-r

KHALID JAMIL SIDDICI WAEER SHAFI
Chairman Chief Executive

JANED KHAN
Directar / CFO
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Balance as at lune 30, 2023

Total comprehensive income:

Nt prafit far the vear ended lume 30, 2024
Reclassification on dsposal of FUTOC directly into squity
Fair value adjustment an irvestrment classified as FYTOD

Tran now :

105 cash dividend pald for the vear ended June 30, 2023

Balance as at July 01, 2024

Takal comprehensive incamme:
Met profit for the year ended June 30, 2025

Reclassificatior on disposal af FUTOC) directly into equity

Fair value adjustment on irvestrient dasafied as FUTOO

Transacton with owners:
7505 cash dividerd paid for the year ended June 30, 2024

Balance as at June 30, 2025

Reserves

—Capital Reserve—- —Revenue Reserve—-

Issued, Unrealized gain f
Subscribed and {lass) on Unappropriated Total
Paid up Share  revaluation of profit
Capital irnrestments
Rupess
Bk, 750,000 1,521,192 60,035,753 158,306,545
11,043 541 11,043,541
7,634,203 1,634,003
- 2,173 214
- 9,575,000 19,675,000
26,750,000 9,157,568 61,404,254 167,311,862
30,858,562 30,858,562
- 3,005,115 5,205,115
T84 599 254,599
[7,256,250) 17,256,151

—%0550000  1ledltel  35006kMe  134403REE

The annexed nates 1 1a 38 farm an integeat part of these financiol statements

4%

KHALID JAMIL SIDDK
Chalrman
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Chief Executive

l'  ————
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Directar ! CFO
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Hobe
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before income tawes and final tawes
Adjustment for mon cash items:
Depreciation
Gam on sale of progerty, plant and equipreent
Other incomie
Finance cast

Profit before changes in working capital

[Iner@asa) in cUrrant 8asets
Stock in trade

Trade dichits

Short term kaans and edvances
Oither recsivables

Inerease in eurrant liabilitias
Creditors, accruad and ol liabilties

Financial charges pald

Taxac paikd

Cash procecd from Sales tax

Met cash | used in | f generated from operating actvities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditure

Additions in investmeant

Cicgensal ol Invastrmernt

Procee=ds from sale of property, plant and eguipment
Met cash wied in investing activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash proceeds from hart term fnance under markup arrangement
Repagmant af short term Hnance under morkup arcangement
Cevidend paid

Met cash genarated from Bnancingg activities

Het (decredde] [ increase in cadh and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eauivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash pguivalents at the end of the year 27

The annexed nates 1 ta 38 form an integral port of these financiol stole ments.

Fiiri] ikl
Rupees Augs=es
45 257 BET 26, T, R
11,517 7480 O 1ED, 026
[FEEEF] {1,087 375
{13,643 552 {9,116, 601
20,433 B50 28 363,704
BT A A4 27 S, 754
Th,SH2, 192 R4, 0, 140
66,59 035 [ 103, BB, P06
{371,106, 823 {14, B, 236/
19, 1007 16,ER2, 222
10,144 &16 {15,641 1%32]
(292, 457,279] (117,495,012}
37433 110 B3, 0% 255
37433110 093,309,259
120,438, 850 128,363,704
{16,2326,255) {11,027 301
1R, 737 &21 16, BDE %S
{205,369,460] 7313280
135,975, 140 {22,760, F31;
{46,240, 582] {37 900, B05]
33762419 17,751,231
ol Sl 1,206, 000
(48, 7S, BA) (41,669 BG]
557,141, 089 45,723,313
1296,584,121] | 300,655,452
(7,042 441 {9,350,.971}
*53,514, 537 35,716,080
G40, 736] 1,366.271
(2,656,361 14,062,631
[3,337,095] {2,696, 361)

KHALID JAMIL SIDDICI WAEER SHAFI
Chairman Chief Executive

IAVED KHAN

Directar / CFO
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025
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STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS
Imernationa Knitwear Limnited {hereinafter referred as the *Cornpamy® o "KLY is incorporated in Pakistan and is listed on Pakistan Stock

Exchange Lirnited. The geographical acation ang aodress of the head office and manufacturing plart o the Company i Plol & =281,
SITE, Karacki, Pakistan,

‘W= are leaders in creating, developing and manufacturing knitted and woven appare! progucts right from basic ta highly fashioned
Earmants. We are ergagad in the export of quality garments, We have established a name of credentials awing to the projected
commitmants, warking speed and quality practices. Our operating philosaphy is to provide buyerss with products that meet their
specitication, and are reliably deliversd at a reasonable price in domestic and intemational markets,

BASIS OF PREPARATION

21

statemeant af complianes
Thesa financizl statements have bean prepared In accordance with the accounting and reperting standards as applicable In
Pakistan. The acceunnng and reporting standards ac applicable in Pakictan compeise of @

- International Financial Repsrtng Standards (IF3%) Ssued by the Irternational Accounting Stendards Board (456} as notrhed
under the Companies Act, 2017, and

- Provisions of and directives issved under the Compamies Act, 2017
Where provissons of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2007 differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of and
directives issued under the Companies &t 2007 have been followed.

During the gear the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) have withdrawn the Technical
Release 27 "IA5 12, Income Taxes (Revised 20131 and issued guidance — “IAS 13 Application Guidance on
Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes®, The said guidance requires taxes paid under final tax
regime ba be shown sepasately as a levy instead of showing it in current tax,

Accardingly, the impact kas been incorparated in these inancial statements retrospectively in
accordance with the requirement of Indernationa’ Accounting Standard (185 8) - *Accoomting Palicies,
Charge in Accounting Estimates and Errars’. Thesg has been ro effect on the Staternent of Finarcial
Prositian, Earnings per share and Statement of Changes in Equity a5 2 result of this change.

Effect on profit or loss and other Had :h_m A "_n Impact of chanze in After w“‘?l
. change m Accounting . effects of chamge in
camprehensive income Policy accounting palicy accounting policy
Far the year ended June 30, 2025
Taxatan - Final taxes - 1004213 1,004,213
Profit before income tax 48,2497 557 (10042130 48,283,344
Taxatian - Income tax 18,438,995 (1004213) 17,434 782
Effect on profit or loss and other i !h_E“ been "_u Impact of change in After hmpmaﬂqg
comprehansiva Incoma change in Accounting accounting poliy effects of chamge in
Policy accounting policy
Far the year ended June 30, 2004
Taxation - Final taxes . LATAETS 1,273,875
Profit before intame tax 26,780,386 (1273 E875) 25,506,511
Taxation - Income tax 15,734,845 [1273ETS) 14,462,970
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025
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13

24

3

Basis of measurement

These financal statements have been pregared under the historical cost convention except a stited otherwise in these financial
statements.

Functional and presentation currency

Thase financial statements are presentad in Pakistani Rupees, which is Company's functicnal currency, All the financial
information preserted in Pakistani Fugee has been rounded off to nearest Rupee.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of Snancial statements in confarmity with Intermational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) requires the wse of
certain accounting estimates, It also requiees the management to exercise its jJudgment in the pracess of applying the Company's
accounting policies. The areas involing a higher degree of judgment aor complesity, or areas where assumplions and estimates
are significant to the finandial statements, are 2s follows;

Classification of financial instrurments; (nate 4.2)
Prawision for irmpairment; (robe 4.4

- Waluation af work in progress; (note 4.8]

- Provision for obeolete inventary; inotz 4,11)
Tawation; (note 4.14)

Estimates and Judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experences and ather factors, ncluding
axpectations of future events that are beliaved to be reasonable under the circumstances.

STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS APPLICAELE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Change in accounting standards, interpretations and amendments to published accounting and reporting standards
[a] Amendments to published 2ccounting and reporting standards which became effective during the year;
Hew and amended standards mandatony for the first Gme For the financial year beginning July 1, 2024,

Amendments to 145 1, Presentation of Finandial Statements” 5 applicable on accounting periods beginning on o
after Janwary 1, 2024 Undar existing |45 Lregirements, companies dassity a liability as corrent when they do not
hawe an unconditional right to defer settlement af the liability for at least twelve months afier the end of the
reporting period. A part of these arcendments, the requirement for a right to be unconditional has been remaved
and instead, the amendrments requires that a right to defer settlement must have substance ang esdst a1 the end of
the reporting period. This right may be subjact to a company complying with conditions [covenants) specified in a
leam agreament. At October 31, 2022, after reconsidering certain aspects of the anendments, the | A58 reconfirmed
that only covenants with which a compary muwst comply on or before the reparting date atfect the dassifieation af a
liability as current o ran-current. Cavenants with which the compary must comply after the reparting date (ie.
future covenants) do not affect 2 liability's dassfication at that date, However, when non-current liakalities are
subject to future covenants, companias will now nesd to disclase information t2 kel users understand the risk that
those Raklities could become repavable within 12 rmonths after the reporting data,”

Tha ather naw standards, amend ments to publishad accounting and reparting intarpratations that are mandatory in
Pakistan for the financlal year begnning on luly 1, 2024 are considered mot to be relevant or to have any sighificant
effect on the Camgany’ financial reporting and operations.

31



[nternational Knitwear Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

32

Amendments to published accounting and reporting standards that are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Company

The following new standzarés and amendments to approved accounting standards are not efective for the financial
year beginning on July 1, 2024 and have not been early adopted by the Compary:

a) Amendments to |45 21' The Effects of Changss in Foreign Exchange Rates’ iz applicable on accounting periods
beginmng on or after lanuary 1, 2025, The amendments address situations where a currency may lack
erchargeability, often due to pavernment-amposed controls. In such cates, companies must estimate a gpot
exthange rate reflecting orderly trarsactions at the measurement date, The amendments provide flexibility, allowing
Lhe wse of observable rates without adjustment or other estimation technigue provided they meel the estimation
chjective. The assescment considers factors like the avallability of multiple rates, parpose, natwre, and vpdate
frequency. The amendments reguire new disclesures, including the nature and financial impact of nen-
exchangeability, the spot exchange rate used, the estimation process, and associated rsks.

b| Mew standard IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclasure in Financial Stataments’ is applicable an accounting periods
beginning an or after January 1, 2027, The standard focuses on updates to the statement of profit or loss. It
introduces key concepts such as the structure of the statement of prafit required disclasures far cartain prafit ar loss
performance measures reported autside the financial statements {management-definad performance measures),
and enhances principles an aggregation and disaggregation applicable to the primary financial statements and notes,

ch Mew standards IFRS 51 ‘General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability-related Financial Information” and
IFRS 52 ‘Climate-related Disclosures' are applicable on accounting pericds beginning on ar after July 1, 2025, These
skandards include the core framewark for the disclosure of material information about sustainability-related risks,
opportunities acress an antily’s value chain and set oul the reguirements for entities o disclose information about
clirmate-related risks and opportunities,

IFRS 51 requires entities o disclose information about its sustainability-related risks and opportunities that is usefu
to primary wsers of general-purpose financial reporting in making decisions relating to providing resources to the
entity. The standard provides guidance on identifying sustainability-related risks and coportunities and the relevant
disclosures to be made in respect of those sustainability-related risks and opportunities,

IFRE 52 is a thematic standard that builds on the requirements of IFRS 51 and is focused on climate-related
dizclosures. IFRS 52 reguires an entity to identify 2nd disclose climate-related risks ane opportunities that could
affect the entity's prospects ower the short, medium and long term. In addition, IFRS 52 requires entities to consider
cther industry-based metrics and seven cross-industry metrics when disclosing gualitative and guantitative
componants on how the entily uses metlrics and Largets Lo measure, moenitor and marage the identified matarial
climate-related risks and opportunities The cross-industry metrics include disclosures on greenhouse gas ("GHE')
emissions, transition risks, physical risks, climate-related opportunities, capital deployment, internal carben prices
and remumeration.

The management anticipates that the adoption of the above standards, amendments and interpretations in futurs
periads, will have no materizl impact on the financial statements athar than in prasertation [ disclesures. There are
a number of ather standards, amengments and interpretations to the published standards that are not yet effective
and are also not relevant to the Company and, therefore, have not been presented here.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The materal accountng policies are consistently applied in the preparation of these financial stat=mentzare the same as those applied in
earliar periods pradsntad,

4.1

4.

Government Grant (LAS 2a)
Grants are not recognized und! there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attaching to
tharm and that the grant will ba received,

The benefit of a long-term finance at o bedow-market rate of interest 18 treated as a deferred grant, maasured as the difference
batwaen proceads recaived and tha falr walua of the loan bated on pravailing market intarest rames

Grants related to long-term fimances ane recogrized in profit or loss an a systematic basis over the pericds inwhich the Company
recagnizes as finance cast related to long-term finances at market rate of interest.
Financial Instruments

Initial measurement of finsncial assst

The Do panvy classifies (15 financial scets into following three cegaries:
- fair walue through other cormprahensive moamse (FVOCI);
fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL); and
masuréd at amomized Cost.
A firancial asset |5 initally measwered at fair valee plus, far an e not at BYTPL transaction cests that are directly attributable to
its acouisitian,

Subgequent messuramant
The fallowing accomtng policies apply 1o the subsequent measurament of financial assets:

Financial assets a1 FYTRL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value Net gains and losses, including
any Irterest frnarkup or divldend Income, ane recognized in income statement,

Financlal assets at These assate are subgaguently measured at amortized cost using the effective interast

armaortized cost mathod. Tha amortized cast is reducad by impaimment losses {see (i) below). Intaract [/

markup income, foreign exchange gains and losses and imipairment are recognized in
income statement.

Debit investrments at FVOC These assets are subspquently measured st fair vaue, Interest [/ markus income
caleulated using the effectve interest method, foreige eschange gains and losses and
impairment are recognized in income statement, Other net gams and losses are
recognlzed in 00, On derecognition, gains and kbsses accumuylated in OO are
reclassified to Incoma statement,

Eqjuity imvestmants at Pl These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dowvidends are recognized ac
IncoMme in inporme statement wnless the dividand clearl reprasents a recovary of part of
the cost of the investment. Other nat gains and losses are recognized In QCI and are
nevar reclassifod to Income statamant.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

Financial assets ae derecognized when the rights to recelve cash flows from the assets have spired or have been transferved
and the Company has transfemmed,

Non-derivative financial asssts

All non-desivative firancial assets are indally recognizec on trade date | e date on which the Company tecames party o the
respeckive contractual provisions, Monsderlyvative financlal assets comprise keans and recelvabies that are financlal assets with
feed aor determinable payments that are not quoted in achive markets and includes lang term loars, accruals, prepayments,
advances and ather recevables and cash and cash equivalent. The Company derecognizes the fnarcial assets when the
contractual rights to the cash flows fram the asset ewpires or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in 2
transaction in which substantially all of the risk and rewards of ownership ol the nancial et are trandlerred ar it neither
trarisfers nor retain substamtially all af the risks and rewards of ownership and does nal retain contral aver the ansferred asset.

33



[nternational Knitwear Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

4.3

4.4

4.5

ah

a7

34

Regular way contracts

All purehasas and sales of securities that require delivery within the tme frame estabilishad by regulation or market corvertion
such as T#2' purchases and sales are recognized at the trede date. Trade date is the date an which the Company camrmits ta
purchase or sell the assets.

Impairment
Financial assets

The Campany recognizes |oss allowances for Expected Credit Losses |ECLs] in resgect of financial assets measured at amortized

The Company measures loss allowances at an amauni egual to lifetime ECLs, except for other securities and bank balances
which are measured at 12 months expected credit bosses, Since these 2esets are short term in nature, therefaore no credit loss is
enpected on these balanoes,

Kon-financial assets

The carrying amaurts af the Company's non-financoial assets are reviewed at each balance sheat date to determine whether
these is any indication of impairment. I such indication =x5ts, The asset’s recoverable amount, being higher of vales in wse and
tair walue less costs to sell) s estimated. In assessing walue in use, the estmeted future cask flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the tirre value of maney and the risks
specific to the asiet, For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested indivieually are grouped together into
the smallest group of azsets that ganerates cash inflows from confinuing use that are lasgsly indzpendent of the cash inflows of
other assets or grovps of assets An impairment loss s recognized whanevar the carrying amount ol an asset exceeds its
repaversble amount. Immpairment [osses are recognized in the statemeant of prafit or [oss,

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are initizlly recopnized on trade date i2 date on which the company becomes party o the respective
gontractual provdsions, Financal labilities include mark-up Bearing borrowings and trade and other payvables, The Company
derecognizes the fimancial lizbilines when contractuzl obligations are discharged or cancelled orexpired. Financial liability ather
than at fair valee through profit or lass are initially measured at fair value less any directly attributable trareaction cost.
Subzequent tolnitial recognition, these labllites are rmeasurad at amatized cost using effective interect rate methed.

Off-serring of financial assets and Anancial liabdlities

Finantial assets and financial liazilites are offset and the net amount is reparted in the financial statements only when tha
Compary has a legally enforceable right to offset and the Cormpany intends to either settle on a net basls, or to realize the assets
and ko seftle the liabilities simultaneoushy. Incorme and expense iteins of such assets and liabilities are also offset and the net
amount is reparted in the financial staterments only when permitled by the accounting and reperting standards as applicable in
Pakistar.

Praperty, Plant and Equiprment

Property, plant ard cquipment are stated at cost bess accomulated depreciation and irmpairreat losses, it any,

Depraciation is charged, from the manth whan the auset is available for use and ceased prior to the manth of disposal, ta profit
and loss aecount apphing the straight-line methad.

kalntenance and repairs are charged to profit and loss account &s and when incwrred. Major renewals and Improvements ara
capitalized and the assets so replacad, if ary, are retired. The residual values, useful lives and depreciabion method zre reviewsd
and adjusted, if approgiate, at each kalance sheet cate.

Gains and losses arising on disposal of property, plant and equipment are taken to profit and loss account in the year of disposal.
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0.8

44

4.10

411

4,12

4,13

Capital work in progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost accumulzted up to the balance sheat date and reprasents expenditure incurrad an
progerty, plant and sguipment in the course of construction. These expenditures are traniferred to relevant category of
progearty, plant and equipment az and Wwhen the assets start operation.

Right-of use assets

Right of use assets are inidally measured at cost being the present value of lease payments, initlal direct costs, any lease
payments made at or before the commencement of the lease as reduced by any incentivas received. These are subsegquently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accurnwlated imgalrment losses, iF any.

Depreciation is charged on straight line basis over the shatter of the lease tarm or the usatul life of the asset. Where the
ownership of the asset transfers ta the Cormpany at the end of the lease term or If the cost of the asset reflects that the
Company will exercise the purchzse ootion, depreciation is charged aver the useful life of asset

Leases

A contract is, of comtaing a lease if the oantract comweys a right to contral the use of an identited asset far a period of time in
exchange for corsideration, The entity racognizes a right-of-use asset and lease lizbility at the kase commencemant data, The
rlght-of-use asset s nfally measured at cost, and subseguently 2t cost less any acoumulated degreciation and [rmipairrment
losses if any, and adpsted for certain remeasurements of the lease liabildy. The right-of-use asset s depreciates using the
straight line method over the shorter of the lease term ang the asset's useful life | The estimated usefl lives of assets are

deterrmined on the same basis as that for owned assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset ks perlodically reduced by impalrment

The lease labllity Is inftizlly measured at the present valee of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted using Lhe interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rale cannol be readily determined, the enlity®s incremental
borrowing rate. The lease liability is subseguently increased by the interast cost on the lezse lizhility and cecreased by leass
payments made, U5 re-measured when thers i a change in fulure lease payments arsing from a change noan index or rate, 3
change in assessment of whather axtension option is reasonably certain to be axerdsed or a termination option is rezsenably
certain not to be exercised, Liabilities fn respect of short tarm and low value l2ases are not recognized and payments against
such leases are recognizad as expensa in profit or less.

Stock-in-Trade

12| Aaw, packing and other materiak are valued at the lower of cost caloulated on @ first-in-first-out basis and net
realizable value,

(bl ‘Work in process is valuaed 2t material cost plus estimated conversion cost,

icl Finished goods are valued al lowar of cost and net realizable value [NBY). NRY signifies the estimated selling price in
tne ordinary course of business less cost necessarily to be incurred “noorder to make the sale.

(di Stock-in-transit is valued at cost compris'ng invoice walue plus other charges incurred thereon.
Staff Retirement Bemefits

The Company aperates an approved defired contributony provident fund schems far aligible emalayees, Equal contributiang ars
made o the fund by the Comgany and the employees zt the rate of 233 % of hasic salary.

Compensated Absences
The Comgany has a palicy to provide for compensated absences for all employees in accordancewith the rules of the Compary.
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415

4,16

417

4.18
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Taxation - Levy and Income tax

Ly

In accordarce with the Income Tax Orcinance, 2000, computation of final taxes is not based on taxable income. Therefore, as
per 145 12 Application Guidance on &ccounting for Minimam Taxes and Final Taxes issuec by the ICAP, these fall within the
scope of IFRIC 21145 37 and accordingly hawe been classifizd as levy in these unconsolidated financial statements, except for
taxes on dividends on the Company's investments in subsidiaries and associates which are specifically within the scope of 18512

and hence these confinue to be categorized as current income bax,

Current

Prowision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation in accordance with the finzl tax regime,
aof the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, Income nat covered undar final tax regimea is taxad under nerrmal regima,

Deferred

Deferred ta is proviced using the balance sheet liakelity method, providing for temgorary dfference between the carming
ampunts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for Lasation purposes. The armount of
deferred lax provided s based on the expected manner of realization or sefllernent of the carrying amouwnl of assels and
liabilities, using tax rates enzcted at the balance sheet date,

Borrawing Costs

Borrowing costs ara recognized as expense in the periad in which they are incurrad, except to the extent that they are diractly
atiributable to the construction of a qualifying asset in which case they are capitalized as part afthe cost of that particular assst

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present begal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, when it is
probable that outflow of resourcas embadving econormic benefits will be required to settle the ebligation and a reliable estimate
of the abligation can be made,

Fareign Currencies Translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for in Pak Rupees at tha rate of exchange prevziling an the date of transaction.
Manetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencizs as at the balance shest date are sxpressed in rupses at rates of exchangs
prevailing on that date, Mon monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are trarslaied
wsing the exchanges rate at the date of the transactions, Exchange gains and bosses are included is income currently,

Revenue Recognition

- Revenue from sale of goods is recognired when the Campany satisfies 2 performance obligation by transfarring promisad
gonds e customer, Goods are transferred when the customer obtains their contrad (i2. on dispatch of goods to customers),
Revenue is recogrized at transactan price (which sscludes esfirmates of variable consideration|

- Profit an bank balances is recognized on a ime proportion basis on the principal amount cutstznding and at the applicable

- Gains [ {losses) arising on disposal of investrmenits are recognized o the date when the transacion takes place.
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4.19

4,20

7,21

F- e

4.3

4.4

Balances from contract with customears

Cantract assets

A conlracl assed is the right to condderation in exchange for goods or services transferred 1o the customer. The Company
recognizes a contract asset for the samed consideration that k conditional if the Company performs by transferring goods or
caryices 1o 8 customer Before the customar pays consderabon or Belore poyment is 3o

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is uncondtional. Trade receivables are carried
at original invalce ameunt less expected credit kess based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the year end, Bad debts are
withen off when identified.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability s the obligotion to tronsfer goods or secvices to o cwustomer for which the Company has recerved
consideration from the custamier, A contract Imbility is recognized at sarlier of when the gaymert 5 made or the payment s due
i & custorer pays consideration befora the Company tranifers goode or services to The dustomern,

Right of return assets

Right of retum asset represants the Comgany’s right to recovar the goods erpected 0o be roturred by customers, The asset s
meeanurEd A the former carryng amount of tha irmeentory, less any axpaciad oosts To recover The goods, moduding ony pdtentiol
decreases in the valoe of the returned goods. The Company updates the measurement of the asset recorded for any revisions o
its wupected level of retums, as well as any addifional decreases in the value of the returned prodaacts

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is the abligation to refund some or all of the consideradon receved {or receivable) from the customer and is
weeasured at the amount the Company ulfimately expects it will have o returm o the customer, The Company upsdates its
eutimates of refund lbilities (and the corresponding change in the trareachon price] at the end of each reporting period.

Cash ang Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash Balances, current and depeosit account balances with banks, and running fAnance
Tacilides availed by the Company, which forrm an integral part of Company™s cash managerment and are includad as part of cach
and cash equivalents for the purpose of statement of cash flow.

Related Party Transactions

All transachons inwohang related parbes ansing in the normal cowrse of Dusiness are conducted at arm's length at normal
commearcial rates on the same terms and conditions ag Third party Wwansactions wsing valuation red Bs, af admissild e, except in
exlremely rare circurmslances, where subject Lo the approval of the Board of Directors, it & in the inecest of the Company to 2o

Sagmants Roparting
ldentification of scgments

Expait dvision
Local divis on

Easis for allocation far revenue and crpenses:

Rauvanue in respect of aach segment s separately identifizble. Expenses against knithng charges, dyeirg and othar charges,
embroidery charges, sttching charges, clearing and fTorwarding charges, freight ocimi and canage expersas are allocansd an
actual basis. Howewer, depreciation and all other general expenses are allocated on the following bas's

ilEm:nl. Allocation
Basis of allocation Export Local
Depreciation an all assets A% 9E5 G 0254

Earmings per share

The Company presents camings per share (EPS] data for its ordinary shares. EPS i calculated by dividing the profit or loss
amributable to ardinary shareholders of the Company by the walghtes average nurmber of ordinary shares sutstanding during
tha periad,

Dividend and other apgropriations

Dividend to the shareholders is recognized in the period in which it B declared and other approgriations are recognized in the
periad in whaeh these are approved by the Bosrd of Dwectors,
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plir] i
§  PROPERTY, PLANT ARD EQUIFMENT kite Aupess Aupees
(perating 3usets 5l EPEEERT 13514,1
Capital wark in progreu 5 - -
Right-oi- 152 amete %] 3 .
AL BRSNS
51 Opessting Rasats
JWHED ASEETE
Platand Fumizer2 and Tt
Leasehinld Lang || Factory Euld ng Madhnery Fiage Equpmrl's | Mty Vahides || Computars
Fapass
Yeer enced luse 30, 1025
(zering net baok amow 385400 3138 M6 1531141) 554,119 1548 B Ll ] falail 15047
Addirions - 0281 - ' 15159050 415740 L 104,58 45810 25361305
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(igeak - canee - . PEELL R . |5 et [Fc s I E el 4,203,170
Dazraciation charge H717]) {1360 2361 TR IE-ll.EvBS' I | RITIM] (50838 {11,510, 780
[zl - aocumulzted deprsciation - - 2153600 40250 31150 1804 16m,102
Clasing ned book anoun — I 415773 141 1‘4_1-15 LE L N N 2 S0spe manEm
A ure 34, BHS
et 4707 59 569 356 560361 LM 1044 24 TOEms 153 151400 550
Ao ated ceprerEdon e v | j15, 263051 12,394 175 LTINS LR (1754360 (55,007,563
Mt back: amzurt —E2 5TITE 17ale LAuEs iz 11,850, 3 103084 manm
Teor endad luse 30, 204
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Chysing ned bock amount _i.ﬂi,ﬂ]__ﬂﬂ.'ﬂj_ IGHLED 354019 MMM}L
A Jure 3, B
Coel 4,707 5l 5161018 J00ELALD LEsN LI 24e BE48 15000 115,751,450
Acoumyiated ceprac o (0 Es) (1573100 {13,741 800t 11,781 40| HTTE)  QILIATEEE 0 ER.A0E 146, 230.356)
Met back amsurt .. 1) N 1Y 1! I Y| T— T | — R
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5.0.1 Detail af @goral of praperty, §lant snd sguigment

Acrumulabad Sale 2
LR Bazark il Gl [l Parthcular ol
depredanian (T [l Mhatt) | Moge of dispasal
Hpe s Purchaser
Bt pad machmery
= achins
ant ard machnery 1,538.910 24,153 50 13519 535 000 185708 FMe=grtiabon W Azfig
Sorpe
F5IROT 2AS1ETE 335, 1 57500 183, ™04
Whohoe Wehicles
ke CD-110 791,000 - r L1H 19E E3D - (198 550 tmaichieg M
1K) S50 95 - [198 850
Office equiprrenis
A L Ogisn 1.5 148 0,000 31500 35,500 30,030 |85 0 MaggTianicon 54, Pharmian
A Window 025 o 12,000 E 730 g 50 LLLLEA 5L Magatisbon Wiy, fibigl b
BS,000 40,250 4,150 40,080 4, 750
Lomputer/Lagtap
Lap tap HP 05 8th Gen 33,500 15500 10,000 BURIEH Meptistion Br. M, Sakir
Lap tp HA 451 15 dth Gean 7,000 47,000 . 13,030 FETIEE Mapatistion & & Lo ey
Sormpt Comouters ET.00 257, M0 . 14,530 14500 Megatistion Mr. dza
ap bop HP 451 IS Jh Gen 15, 15,060 - 000 5000 Magotistion A4 (ompautesy
Lap B3p HP ALY IS Mh Gt 41,000 1ZH4 j: = 20000 1AM Magatishon & A, Cnam partesy
T, M0 3E4 034 A, 168 50580 42,33
A3121T0 FRTERAS E3NLOGE ___ BEaSD AR
51,1 Segmest wise 3llocetan of degreciation charge far the pasr
FIFE] FITFT]
Bpott | Luzal Tetal o Loz I Turtal
Hupees
Lepae hold bind FHIE k] 1,150 47177 7045 0118 47,173
raclong building 1071965 1333 433 1,360,358 1185107 B 1 500 3067 017
PMart and machineni 1530 578 3 0E1315] I.B73.919 1176161 B75 247 3051 408
Cial of gaods sald 1 AIR 067 3 A4 457 E,081 504 X 38 517 1,791 M0 4 LEE 557
Fueriture aad fiftingy EER I 1.1 L LY TR % S ATE AN
Office equipmenty L2950 1M, 114 S0.000 170504 1I0EEL 207 35S
Motar vehic e 1LTELTE) 2333467 4,115 154 1137871 15908910 3,713,761
AT 2M.115 1 SR, 351 282 350 FI0102 450 4B
B win prd sl egiriees 235376 3 0E3 564 5,438,176 T EE3 527 2130887 4 958 419
[T GAI100M 10,507,080 [FEIEICR 150 157 £_1ED 334
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ik LY M4
51 Wicssmen! incapilal ek e progres TP 1 3eag
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Pedd: Ad & Then daiding 1hed'paar & EOBELS 5351 211
e Trarshor b operal o rmesrs (6, E0HE15] [EEC R
LOKG TERM OEPDITS
Saspurhy deqiod s - S5GC 1,500,080 1,500 00

Saounity depeniis - aga it Arored kase

:,mnﬁ- 150 RA

B The wearty depssi held by Bank &1-abib Livied ageisl the duarasdes @ has grovided 1o Sul Ssutbere Gas Cormaary Lisied ganl supply of GG 1o the Co=gany. The
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INVESTMENTS

Lang Term Iavastrmeants
A fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOC)
Equity securities - liszed

Short Term Investments
A fair value throwgh prafit or lass [FYTPL]

Equity securites - listed

Mubual funds - listed

7.1 Long Term Investments
Equity Securities - listed

Mumber of Sharas

2025 2024
5,000 26,500
1,000 -
5,000 -
. 1,000
41,500 40,500
14 500 14,500
1,700 1,700

7.2 Short Term Investments
Equity securities - listed

3,000
5,500
9,167
12,400
16,500

2,500

8,600
30,000
12,400
14,250

1.2.1 Short Term Investments
Mutual Funds - listed

14,476
13,804
585
150,691

4,301
010

13,014
12,591
&,638
ao,113
3
109,696
1

Engro Fertilizer Limited

hdarl Energles Limited

Engro Holdings Limited

Engro Corporation Limited
Pakistan Qilfields Limited

The Hubs Power Campamy Limited
Mdillal Tractars Limited

Attock Petroleum Limited

Engro Haldings Limited

Pakistan Oilfields Limited

Engro Fertilizer Lirmited

Pakistan State Oil Company Limiled
The Huby Parwer Company Limited

AKLD 1slamic Fund

Favsal Funds

MCE Cash Management Optimizer Fund
LUEBL Al-ameen 'slamic Cash Plan-1 Fund
UBL Cash Fung

UBL Liguigity Plus fund

LUEBL honey Market Fund

Mote

71

72
A1

25
Rupees

25,907,662

2024

Rupsees

28,025,260

:H,EDE-..E&S“ 14,544,578 |

42,614,807 32,485,208
—J2522.069 60510468
927,950 4,404,830
626,550
312,800 -
. 332,000
24,492,055 18,542,570
1998 24k 2 364 560
940,722 1,081,200
29.807,662 28,025,260
1,438,850 865, 600
1,004,080 -
5.410,088 4,213,484
- 4,980,600
4F81,372 1,061,004
2,273.865 2,323,890
R ¥ 11| 71— NN
744,083 667,337
1,392,523 1,259,112
&0, 605 879,542
1/ 148 436 4 01%, 3678
- 261
7,540,494 11,118,537
1 74
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1.

s 4
STOCK IMN TRADE Hate Rupses Rup=es
Raw material T4086,585 39,851,589
Wark-in-process 52,919,600 1604, 944, 285D
Finizhed goods g1 47,835,068 38, 715426

T IWAESLIRD T AR SAVIRR

B.1 Finished goods

Finished stack 42,587 397 1,492,762
Fimished stack in transi - 40,287,083
Sorap S Left aver stock 5,337,671 6,935,551

~ 37935068 38,715,426

The fnished goads includes left over steck of Rs 5.33 M {2024: 5.93 M) recarded at NRY.
TRADE DEBTS - CONSIDERED SO0

Foreign - secwed, considerad Aood 155, ¥58 677 18,733 463
Loss on trans ation of export debtors (15,970]) [21,632)
155 243 007 18, F01.831
Local - unsecured .
Considered good 269,070,802 H.Sf’."iﬂﬁl
Considered doubitful 523,270 523,270
259,544,072 35,028,125
Lass: Provision for bad dabts a1 [523,270) [523,270)
a3 424,314 509 53,207,666

9.1 Provision for doubtful trade debts

Opaning provision 513,270 513,270
Prowigion for the year - -
Reversal of provision

523,270 523,170

9.2 Az at lune 30, 2025, trade receivables of Rs 0.523 million (2024: Ks 0.523 million } were past due but not imoaired.
These relate toa number of independent custamers far wham thera is na recant history of default,

0.3 Age analysic aof trade debts ic as fallaws:

Mot yet due 424, 314,509 53,207,686
Past due
Upta 1 manth
- lip g months - -
- More thas 6 montha 513270 513270
LOANS AND ADVANCES
Loans and advances o employees - Long term portion - unsecured, considered good
Loan 1o employess 0.1 I 434 605 1,807,733
Less: current portion of loan to employess i, 507,105) 11,125,733)
227,500 #51,000
Short term Loans and advances - unsecwred, considered good
Advance to contractor and supplier 4 231 9G1 5169720
Current portion of aduances to employees 1,507,105 1,136,733
b, 331,066 6,306,458

41



[nternational Knitwear Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

10.1  The unsecured loans to employess re granced In acoordance with the terme af #mploymant, Loans are necoserabike in monthly Inatal ments over
@ pericd ranging botween % 10 5 yoars amd afe interest Tree. The outstanding balance as at June 30, 2005 pertdieg 10 3 period between 1 - 5
AT
Hrs Fler ]
Trangaooang: Hots Rrpees R
Ackdree 1o CFD
Opetad Balarce TH, R0
P setvars e dudeg Thee goar
1, (O
Refund sdwence during the year TS, DO

1a.2 Ermpany lben msde bs OFO pear 2001 te mest Bducaticnal sxpensss of RHa child which are subseeaently scsived in e livseais, The déslng

Belance is Bs, milmilion s oon June 30, 2025 (2a24; nd mellior)

11. OTHER RICENANLER

Sales pux rebundable 3,314 643 17,656 462
Expo-t rakatse receihunbleg H, 11& H4L 5,047 Rk
Resegrch and development receivabile 25304775 2,574,709
Recebldes dram Bank BAHSBP 1,030,120
LE,1 1 5,2 Il
13 CHSH AND RAKME RALARCES
Carahi i b 200 I IR, (D
With bardoin:
- Treamuires call scoounts ideposit accowrts) 2936177 380871
Saving secaunt 21,735 321404
- Curfenl SB£eourle LA W d=K 42
A, 5 D LI 4,%73.7247
Seeurity deposit 6.4 14,5000, 8] {1, S00, 0]
ZEASELL L3I2.297.
1¥1 Dveprwd T anid savings arcouets cany profit af 9500 o 1900 % per annom (3004 18 50% - BLA0W per annadml
18,  ESLED, SLIBSCHIBED &MD PAID-UF CAPITAL
lxssed, suhscribed amd paid-up share capital
—  MumberofSheares 00
FLLEE] L0324
3,000,000 A.000,000 Oroirary shares of Ry 100~ eoch fully ped in cash 10,000, 000 30,000,000
2% DO ZEL 000 Ordivaary shares of B 10 sach ksusd 38 bones Shores 2,250 M 2, 250 0037
5,450 KKk E 450,00 Righe chares of R 10/ aach fully paid in cash £ SIHE 0N 4, SO0, (M0
— DOIRHE 0075000 — MLISOO0 S, PS0.000

b Compary hes one cless of ordrary shares which carries ro righit Lo fked income, The hobders sre entdled 1o recave dividends as dedered From Heme
Fo Fmee gl are entitled o e vote per $hare a1 comparry. Al Shane rank equel with regaeds 1o 1he company’s sesidoal aeeis,

14 DEFERRED LIARILITIES - DEFEREED TANATION LIABILITY [ (ASSET)
Dapfeerod Law llakiWty ariding i= recpact ai

Biessalariitad bag dupracision B A0S 5 S 4, 10% KRN

Rigrt to use assnk -

Uinrealized gain on insestmedts

Deferred 1aw asets ariing in redpect of:

Provmian for dowlbtful dabis [251,74A) 151,748

Linrealized goin on insestmenits - Prl Bapgn? {90, 500)

Unrealized gain o Inuestmesis - 00l nlh 17

LinbiBty agamst asset subject to Anance ledse - .

Cary farwad Turmaven Cax |3, &5 G640 |1, 5683, 7F1)
[ERT T [EEEE
JA4A 610 {312 721}

Mot recorded due to prudenoe 312721
1,448 6LR .

14,1  Muring the year, the Company hay recagnized 3 ceterrad tax Bability of Be, 3,84 milion hor (ke first fims, Thishge srsen dues io the application of
T NI T3 rmgime an cdpon incoema by FBE. In prsor years, aotorrsd T Jasats wora on recormed on 5 [rudente hasls; hososor, o ar

Juee 30, 2024, a deterred T aceet of RE 0231 milan had been esbemated,
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15,

ikt 2024
Hode Rapees RBupess

SHORT TERS FINANCE UNDER MARE-UPF ARRANGEMENT - SECURED
Runring finarce faciity 15,1 T 384, 005 L 958 508
Export refmanice fanity 15,2 000,000 10,000,000
Short 1erm finances - local sales 157 040, 00a -
Finance against Fareign dooamentzry bills 5.4 31,475,574
Finance against kacal documentary bils 15,5 13 48k, 540
Shart 1erm finanics - Agairst Raw Material Lol 154 18 810, 550 -
Short 1arm finance - Agairst Solar 5.7 & 164 36T -
Finance against Tawmon Capital Management 58 . 126 330,555

A2 271,538 1ak,398 173

153

15,5

157

Running finance Facility

Zecured frosm Bark Al Habib Limited against bypathecatian charge awer stocks and squitatle mortgege ower factary property at Mot &8 F2AJ,
SITE, Karachi amounting 1o Rs405.76 milion (2024 Re. 405.76 mlion) {with 50% mangin], and lian oser axpart docurmants and parsoeal
guaarantess of Directors of the Compary. The rate of mark-up is eqgual ta 3 Mantks KAOR + 2.5% p.a |2034; 3 Months KBO& + 75% pa). The
focility is renewable ard is volid 0 June 30, 2025, The faciity for runmieg finance s 21 June 30, 2025 smourds to Rs, 598 million (2024: B3, 5,95
millian] of which amount remainng unuliized o1 the year end was Rs, 002 milion [J024 : Rs. 004 millior)

Expart refinance faciling

Sacured from Bark A Habib Limitsd againig hypothecation charge aver tocks sad squitsbile mortgage ower Factary propenly a1 Mot 0 F-28/01,
STE, Karachi amounting 1o s 40656 milion (2024: B #0556 mdlion) {with 50% margin], ard lien oser ovpart documents ond personal
Euarant==y of dractars of the Companmy. The rate of mark-up iz =gual 1o 3 months’ KAoR + 10% p.a {20234 2 Monthe DBOR + 10% pa)l. The
faciity is renewable and & vald tll June 30, 2025 The Facllity for export refinance as at lune 30, 2028 amounts to Bs 60.0 million (2034: ke 20
millian| af which amaunt remaimng unutiized at the year end was Bs. nll millian. {2024: Bs. 19 millian)

Shprt tenm Knonce - loeal cales

The Firarce setured from Bank Al Habib Lirmited agarst invoice of KHAAD] [80% of inwoice amount] The rite of mark-up is squal o 3 Mantha
KIBOR + 25% p.a [2024: 3 Manths KIBOR + L5% p.a) The facilty is rerewable and is valid tll June 30, 2000 The facility for Shoet term: finarce -
local sales as at bune 30, M35 amounts 1o Bs. 5 million (2024 sl million] of which amounts remaining wutlized 2t the year end was Bs. nil
million. (2024 : & amillian|

Fimanes agaimit Fareign documentary hills

This facility is secured from Bank &) Habib Limited prowidesd to negotiate {purchase] Fareign Dooumertary billsfdacuments submitted oy the
compary on export made 2gainst export L'C denomirated in Fareign Currency. The ate of mak-up 3 Worts KIBAE + 2.5 % pa (2024: 3 Month
KIRDR + 2.5 % pa) The fadlity is rerswable and salic il Jure 30, 2025.The facilty for Finance against Forsgn dorumertary bills as a1 lune 30,
2025 amvourts 1o Ra, BLA42 million [2024: ré milion} ol which smounts rerainsg unutileed at the year end was B 3358 million . (2024 5 115.00
millian)

Fwance agast local decumentary bills

This fazlity is =ecured from Bark Al Hagib Limited prowvided to nepobiste [purchese| bocal Documentary bilsfdoccuments submitted by the
comparyy on kaca sales made against local L. The rate of mork-up 3 Month KIBOR + 2.5 % s (2004 3 Moath KIBOR + 2.5 % pa). The fadlity is
renmaable and valid 1ill lure 20, 2025 The faclity for Finance agairet Local documertary bills as at June 30, 2005 amounts o Bs. 194,48 million
{2a24: nil million ) aof which amounts remaining unutilized at the year end wes Bs. 10552 melion - {2024 - 30000 milian)

Ehort term finance - Agairet Aaw Material Local

The Finarmce secured frorn Bank Al Haben limited agaiest purchise of raw materisl Tar agport anders, The rete of mark-up 15 sgual 1o 3 Months
KIBOR + 25% pa (Jume 30, J0E4; nil), The Taclicy ie renewalle and i walld dil June 30, DI25 The faciling for Sho eem finance - AEainst Row
Misterial Lol 45 &1 Jure 30, 2025 snownts to Ry, 4981 millian (beae 30, 2024: vil milion| of which smounts remaining oratilized 21 the peripd
end was B, 0019 millice. June 30, 24024 : nil)

Short term Bnance - Agairdt Salar

The Anance sacured dfram Bank Al Habib Limited against Salar system. The rat= of mark-up is egual to 3 Manths KIBOR + 3.5% p.a {June 33, 2024:
nil|. The faciioy s one off as at June 20, 2025 amounts ta Fs G164 millien (June 30, 2024: md milbon) of which amounts remaming unatlined at
tha pariod ard was Re 3.57 million. (Jume 20, 2034 : nil|
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16,

17,

158  Fmance against Twinco Capital Maragemeant

This fimane from Twinco Capitzl Management gairst Purchase arder of Bl Corte Ingels 5084 of such uabue Under blark-up 4.27% for & Morith |

The Eecility utikzed at the vear end Ry nil (2024: 116,33 milion)
159 Lester of credid Sight

This finance against import of packing and raw materizls. Paymert is mede by the bank upan verdicatian of toruments
This Tadlity far imaart as st june 30, 3025 amewsts 1o nil pallian, [2004; 20 milian) of which the amaunt remaining unutillzed at the year the

end was 2.0 millian. (2024 Ni|

CREDITORS, ACCRUED AND OTHER LIAEILITIES Mote

Creditors

Apcrued espanses

Comperisated absences payable

Other fung payable 16.]
Warkers' profit participation furd 16.2
Warkers' walfare fund

Bevance fram customers

Aayabile 1a Brokers

Others

161  Other fund payable
Prowident fund

EOEl payable
16.2  Workers' profit participation fund

Gpening balange
Provicios for the year

Less: Paymients mack during the vear

TANATION - INCOME TAX AND: FINAL TAXES

Firal baes 111
flane tax
Curmerit - fior the year
-Bar prioe yeu
Deferred Tay 14

Bz 204
Fupess Aupags
174,930,202 146,559,026
20427 580 14,660,873
133401 2,559,329
153,072 Fd3 456
1438 TIE 1,438,255
4457 959 3484117
519,35 443,857
36,2/ -
934, TaR B11,245
108,132,871 170,659,767
T 142 £33, 296
33,53 18,160
Ta3,072 b33, 856
1438159 3,473,165
1541 T16 1,438,253
4,079 575 4,511,429
[1.440.259) (3,473 165)
1,639,716 1,034,259
R 1473875
14,605, %8 4,355,314
- 5,105,656
14,605,538 14,463,396
3434616 -
19,054 817 15,735,844

17.1  This represants fircl tases paid uncer section 150 and ection 154 of income Tax Ordmance, J01, representing levy in terms of requirements of

FRIC 21145 37,
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18.  CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

181 Conftingencies
Far tax year 2008, an amendad assessment order has been passed under sectian 122(54] of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 by the Additianal
Commissioner ‘nland Revenue JACIR| against which the campany filed an appeal with Commissioner Inknd Reverug Appeals-|| who passed an
ordar with certain amendments, In pursuznce of such order, Company fled an appeal in 2011 before Appelate Triburaland matter is pending
far hearing.

182  Commitments

Camnitments uncler letters of credit as 21 June 30, 2025 arounted to Rs. 67,50 million [2024: Rs. Nil)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025
-
13 NETSALES 2025 EEF 2024 ” 055 Eﬁ& 200 2025 Tﬁ!ﬂ T
Note Fupees
Expart 554 217499 488541090 - 554,217 499 43,981,295
Sales o 151 - - 654100687 383411414 654,100,587 363411414
Export rebates 577301 5,047 766 : - 5,771,901 5,047,766
SS9SEI400  4S1005065 S 09687  3S3AILA14  1,214,099,087 254,420,479
Sales discount {1,790, 25| (800,031 (2012240 {537 664) (1,261,514) [1,137,645)
Riebiate Commissicn {109,291 (13447 - - {109,291 (13,447
Inspectian Feas (124564 (1.754.308) - - (2,124,564 (2,764 308)
(3324,150} [3,377,788) (200,224) (537,664 [3,525,304) 3,915,450
536665250  MBTE3LINY  ES390463  3ELETAISD 10573713 350,505,028
19.1 Sales local
Local TRATIS007 412312844 764,715,007 412,312,444
Others 1911 LITEIEE 13910085 7,376,268 13,910,085
. TILALITS AR5 773,061,275 405,200 51
Salkes tax Local . . 116,651,442 | 50866782 116,651,442 £0,856,782
Salkes tak others - - 1,330,145 1944 333 1,330,146 1,588 333

117,981 583 GBI 117 541,558 62 811,115

19.1.1 Others include sorap <ales amousting ta Bs. 3,557 871 [2024: Re. 4,196, 116)
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10, CO8T OF G000 5000

Raw end packing material conpumed
Opening stock

Furchaes

Chosing Stock

Salares, dllowences and bensfits
Freriident furd contritation
Hnifing chargss

Cryeng anc ather cargss
Embepidery Frieting charges
Stitching charges
Foel and porwer
Commarizatan

Foslage & telgrams
Fiepairs znd manlanange

Staff wallare and medical cepences
Miokor wehicle and conveyance
Insurange

Depratiation

Clezring and forwerding
Freight, ackmi ang cartaze
Export deweloprent changes
Factory compliance saenies
Commissicn o Sales Tae refund
Trarie | espense

Reversal af Q0T refindahle
Late Snipment charges

(thers

Wlork-in-proces
Opening ock
Clocing stack

Cast of geads manfactured

Finished goods
Opening ack
Closing stock

COST OF GO00S 5000
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EXPORT LOCAL TOTAL
nE__ | i s |t mE_ | e
Note Rupses
AT 1359653 g 15570 39,891 588 19,774 843
11918240 MBSI0ARE  MSMSENL5  LB44STIG SIT4REISS 433476598
(B200L093)  Qag7iST)  MsA8r {17007 (4096585) [35.891,589]
IATIRIE  H05548 1l LB SRS ALE9L
35061000 42007 614 43,507 463 31,278,140 aLO4EAR 73,300,715
10380055 1145185 1,30 815 A5 841 pELEE 1,999, 126
£435528 9761043 81350 58176 15,787,782 15,578,299
00804 49422650 B I | BTG 11409333 15,200 514
{S9R0RT|  J4AS5SR4 MAES| 1515 755 36,380,938 42554 318
MIBETE | E3TIRATT 358 |  EL34455 WLALZ5N | MELI5AR
WAL 1135160 ST &40 16,280,490 18,799,121
149195 187430 126,397 138 511 344593 1
484,753 454217 64521 EE T 1154285 71126
2769939 |  3EIZI% 19080 15E3008 508175 ,300,13¢
L6125 FUENE| 214709 151,154 18623 54,119
LaR3Ss4 | 2539901 LM0EI | 1800049 4304188 4,430,140
17136 EiLa57 R %8 47 71k Loag 344 1049333
513 1633067 1388317 M3 1M AOS1504 4,185,597
11362410 g518293 - - 113a2918 4,519,299
RARDI3 7557030 WEIE | SANEN 19540536 13,180,640
05| 139B1% . . 10520 1,388,178
SIL388 LI 1272450 10 EI T §3,710
L5 463797 414395 TN R 48504 814,158
231 1,146,457 1,078,200 077456 1901111 2,174,713
58411 111263 11147141 £ 748 1382640 194042
SI894TY AE20 093 - - 5188677 4,629,043
1795 571 1568999 1,351,727 1911 75 4147398 4,880,735
5AlR6T S819297% Ak 1R131ATO 497635056 439511354
T L I 55550419 164,540 280 105,606 613
[2L912.281) E.d,'iﬁ?iﬂgl]| 0,007 365 7184 (5L919507]  1164,340,280
MEBSISE  MBS1G61E 0SNG (LRAIS0EN 1D0RDETS (59334467
S700580  ASIO091RE  SAQGMEED  BLITAST  LIANL0 03,006,640
12197 1% FRENE LT 16,518 200 1561154 38115426 4,786,033 |
[20,754.12 (1218722 (270805400 {15,512, 20| 4743 {38,715 426|
1443006 (19974387 (10.652,749) {13,955 005 [9.219 543 (33,529 392
SILINGGeE  MLaohand | SRSl 3. Mh L IDAILiSAT 164,107,446
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ADMIMISTRATIVE AND SELLIMG EXPENSES

Tl s, sllorsances and Benefits
Frinddent fund coatrbution

Communizaton

Peckaps K 1ol egrams

Sall metare and medial peminues

Motor wchick: and comayarce

Bepar 2rd maintenance

Legal and professional charges

Audtoes remuneribion M
[eprecation 513
PrinTing and staflpreny

ndvartisamant and publiciy

Fez, mbscnpbon e penodicals

Rent, rate and taxes

| pep gt rces

Mhers

.1 Audhors’ Resuneration

An el e did

Hall peatly mview

o of pochint ek

Salas tax nn padit and rewiew fap

OTHER INCOME

Invzcea Frosn Financlal At

Prufit um bank accounis

[idend income X
Luchange Gaingjloea)

Mher Incame frae Indgrance Claim

fain o dispasa of Imeestment - net 02
Lorss on braned ation of fer eign cumency debbors

Inesirg Fresy Mon-Financlal Ascele

Gan o depasa o property, plant &°d & uipment

i1 Mvidand Incomma

Listed Shares
Wirtual Funs

.2 Gain on Ssposyl of investeent

F¥TPL
QT i 5o s
-Mubal funds

FWTOC
Quoled §eculies

-

Em?ﬂgq I guﬁim
Papets

205 23
4 515 295 11,171,534 11972 354 E 313,454 Ayt 15,485,178
3B, 364 413,652 LI W Em B50,063 RN
255300 500,341 135 671 T35 0191 i, 195
2,505 1, xay 3 uE] BAl2 17330 15,190
264,374 180,614 62 143,342 510,516 315,655
1160452 1230519 151564 50,1L0 1580256 13HEN
71,506 113,750 0,07 4,540 165 A4 13,350
143,534 184,753 194,503 144,356 ELERLT 419,744
ITEAl0 1,09 LA 536 26,571 05 500,600
PELE R i 1,883,572 1 0E1 5EG 3,130,507 SA3EITE 4,054,829
168735 712,148 147,180 157,347 435915 136
0,308 9,110 70,061 44,13k 138,430 103,846
BT1.9 1,055,157 1,075,543 45,158 L3gE542 1,4, 725
15,154 E49,1535 RS £i32 033 25005 1,481,478
105,557 135,653 134,546 190,547 146,803 214, 600
2T3 A 120 150,380 159,156 FAL0 k07 i
TR ATT TS T AIETT ALY T AETEE HAELET
015 14
Rupees Fupeney

IR 935 200,500
139000 1000, D
A7ALD §1,500
4711 EN T
$42054 2700
815434 T, 410 515,412 TDEELD 1,613,546
- 4,560,133 EE131) 4,623,347 7451112 450,500
47 05 [ E0G, 13| . - A7605 [ 05, BO2)

- - 161,900 - 161 908 -
- e s 271 1585 518 1141 54, 55
(15470} {11,637 - [15,978) (1,633
- fl9,172 2EA12 54,103 2E ALY 1,057,175
11635 [E=T PR PRSI 1T AT 1T ELTER ST
e M b 5,355 B4
1,566 206 1233 /ES
TSI G
BREATS IT0EE
1333 837 [5,580
Lr1a1s 3k,
284.55% 2,113
ELTILLE TG, 61T
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.

FINARCE DOGT T | Iﬂim 1
2035 20t 2035 2024 11 A0ES i A
L
Flark-up on export irfiranoe 2,000,653 2471 44k 2,032 F10 1,014,176 635 4a3 A IH0ATE
Tétark-up an unning Hrance EEIE ] it ] Hd TEE aHART LA LANE 91
Tafta k- shiom Lerm Anence res manirnal ool 2,183,403 . 3,003,541 . 5,296,994 .
retark-up shor term inaree Salsr LT EH] . TE AKX - 1%, % -
Bains chiargss 1513, 507 39074 2.513 4 38,2492 £431.108 153K 166
Flarh-up cn Frarce Trcm Teanco 335357 18,585 15 - $35 357 15 Sa6 905
Broberage and other charget W, 1w1F Btk LA&LT 1E78E
Feftarh-Lip ooy o Moos arting 1,064 T3 1,358, 538 '
retark-up oo thes! tenn francs loan & Discounting . . 11, A04, 252 1,547 430 11 404 353 1567 450
T A0Id5E IR TEIATE Y, TF S0 L= ey [ | T 1. ¥ - [ S [
CTHER CH ARGES
Wiaitoars” proft par fund FanoGs 1 A4 1,BE1 640 ERRELD AL TG 1.45K250
Wlnrkers @ efgre fund B ALl 85 17 mrAzl 0501 LAgaasT adb5RE
1,608,877 L8776 1,554, 51 MTETL 1 E45 55E TELTET

SEGMENT IWNFORMATION
& sgmient & & dereguishable component of e cempany thal ks engaged In bsies oo tes feom which thi Coimpany eants ressilcs and A our erpensos and 1S resuis ans
r i d by Bhen Pk CF At Of g Lk Maker Ba rrokn decullan abouk raipuite b Be aliscabad b5 Ee angmant Srad acoss s perfoimatne. Forther,

dlzenete tina kdal Bhoemation is Jvail ol e 1o each segimenl.

Rared o ind ernal rrore pement repoming stmchar e and podocts procuced and so, the Cormiposrep I8 crgantred inin the F.'Im.lng a0 perabng sEgmEries

= E¥porm

- Lol
Folaina g=ime il o olew's Ohee operaCing resuins of abowve mesTiched segments separaleh Tor the pupposs of making dedsios aboin resources o be allacared and of aseessing
pEffrrmance

Sgrant resenue and 40 gmans repalt for theyear ang a5 nloss

| qﬂ L
2005 1024 205 FIEEE | 103 i 2004

L
Mt Sales S50 LGS, P50 A48T G31.37% 053, e, 83 152,29, 750 10T A50.505 013
Cowt of geadi soks (533, 259, ] (431 254 B (SR1 SR Bl (550,152 446) [1, 104,217,347 [TEE 0T 248)
Gradd prodin 34,430,604 SEEREATE TH,924,5£2 25,721,304 15,356,166 81397782
Admivistrathie aed sebng e paises (16,53 411) [18.7M521) |20, 386,373 (14,712 352 §37, 643 1LE4) (34,852, T3}
Segmend results [CRETRL] B, I AE 53,577,709 11,008 552 [TELCELH] ar, 914,909
Clr®ar ol F1,R35 EAE]1 11,365,578 4,936,520 L1 A3 4543 400
E'::"“:: fain on reva erion. of ve stmens held g, 164 L1 4B 1260617 2,040.727 200,08 5 3%478
=
Fnaree rnst 4,014, 544 [25, 731 B2E) |5, &2, B | i, 542 076 (kL EETE Ch| | 2K 361 70%)
Otk er charpes (R S e 11,537 27EI S0, 0o {047 521 | HEAS.50E| {1.584.797)
Profit bedoee 1aiarion Trosn conthnuisg ons i ion 1 055, BEA 14175 JR1 3, B4, B 43 604 £03 48,297,557 36760985
Tamation
= Curienl 15,130,805 [1226411) [EEFENER] 14477 000 1) (L8 E05.99E] {8358 314
- Frar s 2925 SKT) = [FRE R || - 45 80 B SE]
Fisal |54, AET [ #3330 1505, A0 ) {54357 | 18048, 318] {137387%]
Dt errad (1,224, 759] (1, 604, 035] | 242078
(&, 1,411} |E 536 J6E) |11, 647 584} (1,741 577 (1B 458 995 | |18,7%6 245)
Profit sfier tasation from costinsing apemton PRI EEIDSIE 13,534, [ SA08 005 FIE R S R T AT
plrad Hzd
&S EARNINGS PER SHARE Rupess Rupezs
Essnieg s per dhare « bk oid dikted
Proit after taoation 100, K5H, W0 11 Caksan
Murater of ordinary shanes 9,67a.000 § 575000
Ezaniegs par shara 319 TR
CASH Ay CAEH EQUIVALENTS
Cerih i d Dank balanges a2 2, eda oo 337247
Rynning finance faciity 15,1 b ]| |5 50 R A0E)
EEEEE [EX TN

48



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

9.2

REMURMERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR AND ERECUITIVES
The aggregate amount charged in the accounts far remunzration, including dl henefits to the Chisf =escutive, Director and Execubses of the Company are as
follown:

I T4
Dérectors Chief Executive|| Exerutives Dmorctors Choaf Evocutrin Ercouttves
.................. _m_._.-_—.._._._._

Azair calany 1, Eb SLE JEMeEE 5,011,903 1,508,677 3,80 568 1,935 4B4
Blrmanies 015 424 112008 25TIMT 23,37 11203 1,064 515
Campbiy's caniribubon te provident fund 138,710 122,581 417,742 125,808 3225451 161,250
Windkcal axpansis 151575 09458 3154 135,506 B AST B1 545
Sanies 1514613 3272581 445 161 115,806 322551 161,280
—S0ELE9F _ BHESGSD _SaMaadl 301418 b, P31 EAT 3,804,135

Numbar of persords) 1 1 3 1 1 1

1 Asumof Rs. 340000 | 2024: Rs. 300,000} was paid being f=e for atterding the Soard of Direcbars’ mesting.

I81  Chief axeoutive amed Other Exeputives ane prowided with free use of Compary maintaired cams. They are abso anitld for medical facliy to the etert of
reimbursemer af ach.al exaenditure and 2ther benefits in 2ccordance with their terms of employment,

TRANEACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

Al transactions invohirg relabed partes arking in the normal marse of buciress are conducted at commandial terms and canditions. The raated parties comprise
tall retimement funds, dirsctors and key management personnel. Transsttions with relabed parties | other than those disclosed ekewhers in these financial

STataments, ane a5 follos:

5 2024
Balances: Hobe [iiF- 1 AU e
Fruvideni Fund - putsianding balance 161 Ta1,147 45,55
¥55,143 ARG 738
Cantribution L& staM retipement benghil plans 3,289,933 1,720,517
Koy maragement personnels remuneraten and other benefits L] 18,824 239 12,853,192
1500, PREVIDENT FISID RELATED DISCLOSUAES
The following infarmation & Based an latest ur-audted franda statements of furd
Size ofthe fund - motal assets 10,300 AL L7, 3498 A5F
PeifRilage af Fwestirent mads 4T 33% ThA0
Fairvalue of ruesiments 9,738 516 13,340,140
Cast of abowe immstments 3,819.553 DAL el
The breakua of fir wabee of Imvestmernd is: 25 024 o 2002
Peroealape Perantags Fuszses Aupees
Fayaal Idamic Sovereign Plan -l Ford 1322% a244% L. 204 20 L L2650k
MR FInareal Sactor Incoma Furd &3 12% 35.59% 5,660 67 4,935,334
UBL Fund Hil% 5150% 1348 455 681 35
PSR I Shares 4.45% 106% LEFEC 408 250
L0000 100.00%, eI RIS 13,340,140

miernationl Mritwest Lirited Staff Provident Fund holds the invastmers which g in acoardshoe mith the prosisions of wection 218 of the Companias oy 2017

and the Fules Tormulated o Live purpose
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FINAMNCIAL INSTRUMAENTS EY CATEGORY

FINAMNCIAL ASSETS

Czshand cash equivalent
Irvestments

Lang term deposis

Trace defiis - considerss goo
Loans and advances

Other recereables

Tatal Finamcial Assets

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Ehart t2nm finance under mark-up arrangament - Segured
Creditors, accrued and other payables

Tatz| Financial Liabilities

FIMAMCIAL ASSETS

Cash and sh equialent
Imvestmznts

Lang temn deposits

Trace detils - consicers good
Loans and advances

Other recerables

Totel Finamcial Assets

FINANCIAL LLASILITIES

Short term Fnance under mark-up amangement - Secared

Cregitors, actrued and other paryables
Total Financial Lishilites
FINAMNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

BEwm

= &

Nate

Mz 3t hune 33, 1025
Amaunt in Rupess
Az Amartised FVTPL FATOCI Other financial
Cast labilities
2,510 - :
A1 hld 400 18,907 bad
1,500,000 .
414,314,508 .
2,030 605 .
15,134,341 - -
445,030,415 42514 407 18 907 652
402,871,535 -
- MEA32ET
402,871,335 - 208,132,871
Bs 3t June 30, 2024
Amount in Rupees
Ar Amartised VTR FuTEI Other financial
Cost liabilities
1,473,147 - .
: 37,485 208 78,025,760
1,500,000 : :
53,207,680 -
1,897,733 -
15,278,007 - *
85,256,673 32485208 38,025,250
142253103 .
- 170,689,764
142,208,173 170,680 761

The Baard of Directars of the Campany have cuerall resparaibility fior the establshment and owersight of Compary's risk mansgement framewans. The

Board ks s responsible for developing ard monicaring the Compamy's risk maragement poliles,

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of liquidity risk, credit sisk, and market risk [including currency rsk, mterest rate risk ard price risk),
Company'’s averalls risk management palicy Facases on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects an the

Companys imarcial performance,
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a

Oredit Risk

Creadit rish represents the risk that ore party (o a fisancial Instrument will caise a fnancal loss for the other party by Taileg 1o discharge an obigation
[k Comparr's credit rek & primanly attributable fo fs rads dabts and bafances at banks. Local credit sales are assenbally to Ehaadl. Bacenable from
expor] aales are sevuned againal letter of credil, The credil risk on liguid funds i limited becaoss counler parties ae bamks with ressanably Bigh eredin
ragings.

i Exposure to credlt sk

The carrging amaunt of financial assets represends masmum credit exposure. The maximum esposure 1o credit risk at the date of reporbng is as

fiallowa:
ik 2034
NOTE Rupees Rupees

Financial assets:
Trade dabes a 434,314,500 53207, 686
Laans and advanies 1 1,258 hbk 7157 459
Db ripeivak bes 11 15,134,391 25,279,007
Cack amd hank b 4 146,910 477,347

450,854 376 30,436 333

Thee trade dehbts are due from foncign ard loal customess for export and lozal sales respecively. Wajorry of the frade debes from forelgn oetomers are
secured against letiers of cradit. Manegermnent asyesses the credit guality of locel @nd foreign oetomers, takorg into sccount their finanoal posibon, past
capafiance and othor faceors. Far bank felanoes, fnancal insitutons with sorang oredlit ratings are acceptod. Cred Fde an Bank balanoes & Bmrod ax
these are placed with banlks hawirg good credit ratings. Loans to employess are secared againat their FF balances.

Thee frank balances dong with credit ratings are tabulated below:

Bank Mairss= Creelit Raring

Bank Al-Habib Lirmied Al 5,675,516 4,407,356
Habiby Bk Lirmited -1+ 40,133 15,11%
Bk AHalah HA-1s 1445 a3, 596
Db Islamic Bank Malw 28,740 29,481
Fay=2l Bami Limitad A-14 71,513 A0
Habik Metrapelitan Bank Limited H-1# 99 347 -

3,946,911 4,572,248

T Cornpany Blways messires the lass allowance for trade doebts an an angust sgual o literime FOL using the simpified approach, The espacted (fadit
lomsos on local tracke delbis arc ostimabed w=ing & provision matri By rederence to past dufault paperience af thee debtor and an anabesis of the debtor's
current firancis| oosition, adpasted for factors thet are specific ta the debtors, zemeral ecomamic cordiions of the irdustry inowhich the deblors operate
ared an akessment of both the oirert ag well 28 the forecst directios of condidans a1 the reporting date. The Cemany conslders a irancial acset 1o be
im default when interral or external indormabion indicates thist the Compary bs unlisely 1o recefve the cotstanding contrachesl smowsts in ful and it @s
sub=egquenthy wnthen off, if required.

Cantentrafion of credl rick exisls when changes in ecansmic and industsy etars Sact the group of Lounter parb&aboie ppgregoted credit svpasurs is
'ignl'r:int m relation bo 1ha Companmy's tetal credit exposune. Thae Cormpamy's financial assels are broacly diversified and transactiors ane enlered iedo with
drverie credit worthy partes thersby miteabng @y sigrificant concertroton risk. Therefore, the Company belives thst it i ot =sposed to major
concaniration of cradit Ak,

g rioat Risk

sarket rsk is the risk that the fair value o the future cash Nows of a firarcial reirement may Poctuate 2 3 resuli of changes in market Ererest rates or
the market prices of securibes dwe to thenge in oredil rabng of the Bdoes of the irdtrement, change in maskel serments, speculbbve actibied, supply
and demand af sacurities and liquidity in tha markst.

Market risk comprises of shree types of risk: currency risk, profit rate sk and other price risk.

il Currency risk
Curramc)y rick i ha Fick that tha Tair value or Tetora cach flowe of 3 Peoncial instrumon @ Wil Nuctiuate bacausa of changes i foralgn exchange ratac.
Currercy risk anses manly from futere comenercia transactoes ar recswables and payables thet esist due= totransactians In forelgn currencies.

Fmanoal svsebs mclpde Bs, 155,243,707 (2024 : Fs, 18,701,831 ] whach ore subject bo coirercy risk
Songitivity anahyis

The 10 peacant strengthaning / weakening of Pak Bupse against LD a7 lure 30, 2025 would have (decreased) [/ increased prafit and loss by Bs.
L5534 371 (b024: Be. LEML1B3) accordinghy. Thes analysis assumes thok all other varables remam constank.
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[11}] Isberest Fate rish

Inderesk rabe sk reprasecs the risk Bhed see i wsbae o fubure cash flows of & Ainsncisl mstnemens will Ascbuste becsase of chenpes in marks
intarest rotes. The Compary hay no lang Eerm & t baaring & 1al wiz and lisbiibes whaone fair vaue or foboe cash Acws will lechusts
bt atise of charges in imsarbol iPlefes? fled
Hirareyer, Campary dio poess=ss short term imeres bearing finang sl Ibshiivies wiich inclodes Re. 03 871,590 | 3024; By, 123,395, 071 which are
sckject do irierend raie risk. Apmlcstis mierest rete or financisd instrumsnis hGeoe b relicatad in revnecrive mbas.
Falr waluwe weneitivity anabpis for ined rate koo mssnis
The Campammy dais hel acccindl Far smy lived ralo Hrassisl acdls ard Babilinks &1 fsr ks Fesugh of arall oF inee Thereforn, B drongs e
INN@redt Face ot chi repoating date vecild not 3607 Tha srates ant of profic ar s,
o by Moy i I T Ity a@alysis Tor vasiahle ane i1 mens
A change af WH) hacie pedni in EIRCR f SAF Baee Rate, finarcial liskiligiee a1 the reporting dats would hawe imcreaeed | {deoreaced| mouity and
profit o lac by R 802 miles [AOF: 2. 14T milliand. This arabali sscimes et all sther variaSlie reamaie Seratand. The snahiic W parfarmas
o thee sarna base e e previcus year

Jiii]) Onheer price risk
D FigH Poprecteitt The nok that the fair walue oF futura cach Ao of o Prancial mecruen e will eeieTe Boisite of changos @ sk
nrkcod atha s than thage ansing fom LeEresl rate risk or currency fisk, snpther thode changes are Caaked Iy Boors specifc Lo the individual
finarcial instrumsnt ar iy isseer, orfaciors affectingg 200 similar Bnancial nspnumeadt iracksd im gk markes

Lignitdiny Rlsk

Limdlvy rish is the sk thal the Dorvg iy will ea oo e e @fcualy inomieeting obligation s ssaocdaled with Soancial lekilitles The Ooavnsng mssges Bouidity dak by
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[nternational Knitwear Limited
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

314 Capital Risk Management
The abjectiue of the Campany when managing capital, Le, its sharehalders" equity, 5 to safeguard its abality to continue a3 8 goang
cancern 50 that it éan cantinue to provide returns far sharehalders ane benefits for other stakehadears; and to maintain 3 drong
capital base 1o support the sustained development of its businesses,

The capital structure of the Compary is equity bases. It has firanced all its projects and business expansions through eguity
financing and never resarted on debt financing. However, the Compary has availed short-termn borroming for working capital
32.  FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid 1o transfer a ligbility in 2n orderly transaction i the proncipal
[ar mast advantagenus) market at the measurern et fate under current market condinas (e, an etic price) regardlass of whether
that price Is directhy observable or estimated wsing another valuation technigue.

As at Jurwe 30, 2025, 2l financlal assets and financial liabllities are carried at amartized cost except for mvestmaent in rmutual funds
ard equiny securities which are carried ab thelr fair walues

Fair value hierarchy

The fallowing table provides an analysis of financial instrements that are measured subseguent to initial recopnition at fair walue,
grouped into Lavels 1 10 3 based on the degree Lo which the fir value i observabla,

Level 1 Quoted prices [unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices induded within level 1 that are observable for the assetor lisbility, either directly [thatis,
as prices) or indirectly (that is, darivad from prices|

Level 3 Inputts for the asset o lability that are rot based en observable market data [that is, unobeervable inputs|

The fompany recognizes trarsters between levels of the fair vablue hievarchy at the end of the regerting period during which the
transfer has occurred. The Cormpary's policy for detarmining when transfers betwean levels inthe hizrarchy have ncowrres includss
reonitoring of the fallowling factors:

v changes in rrarket anc trading 3 civily {e.g. significart increases [ decreases in activily]
s changes in inputs weed in valuatien technigues (eg. inputs becoming £ ceasing to be observable inthe market)

There were no transfers batwesn level 1, 2 or 3 of the fair value Rierarcky during the year, The valuation technaques wsed are a5 follows;
Level 1: Quated prices (unadjusted) in active markets

The fair value of financial Instrarments traded in active markets & based an Net Asset Values (NAYS] of te units of the mutual funds
and share pricas for eguity securities at the reporting date. & market is regarded as active whaen it isa market in which transactions
for the asset or lEability tale place with sufficient frequency and volurme 1o provide pricing information on an on going basis.

The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy of the Company's financial assets [by dass) measured at fzir value at

June 30, 2025:
2025
Financial Assets Leval 1 Lewel 2 Lewel 3 Tatal
Fimandal Investments: Fair Value through profit and loss 72,522 069 - - 71,523 069
2024
Financial Assats Lewel 1 Lewed 2 Leswel 3 Tatal
Financial Investments: Fair Yalue through profic and loss £0.510, 468 - - 60,510 468
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

EEN

35

36,

.

38,

2025 2024
PRODUCTION CAPACITY
Installed capacity |?cs.] 1,300,000 1,300,000
Actual producton [Fos.| 744 369 749,875

It is difficu’t to describe precikely the production cagacity in the Texiile Industry since it fluctuates widely depending on various
factors such as count of yarm spun, raw matenal used, etc.

Reasons for shortfall

The short fall in actual production curing the ywear when compared with installed capacity s mairly due to planned maintenance
shutdawm and gap between market demand and supply

NUPEER OF EMPLOYEES
Humber of employees as on the date of financial statements: 280 208
Factory employees 143 168
- Other emplayess 132 130
Average number of emplayees during the year; 280 226
- Fadory employeas 150 158
- (ther employess 130 130

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR 1SSLIE

These financial statemants were approved by the Board of Directors of the Company and authanzed far Esue on September 29,
25,

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Baard of Directars in their meeting held on Septerber 29, 2025 has progosed a final eash dividend of Rs 1.0 per share
amounting to Ks 9,675,000 {2024: Rs, 0,75 per share amounting 12 Rs, 7,256,250), The approval of the shareholders of the
Comparny shallbe obtained at the wpcoming Annual Ganeral Meeting for the yvear ended June 33, 2025,

The financal statemants far the year ented lune 30, 2025 do not indude the affect of the proposed final cash dividend,

Caorresponding figures

Corresponding figures hawve been rearranged and reclassified, where necessary, for the purpese of better presentation and
companson, Hewever ne sinificant reclassification has been made during the year.

FIGURES

Figures have been rounded off ta the rearest of Rupee, unles otherwise stated.

KHALID JAKIL SIDDICH NAEEN SHAFI JAVED KHAN
Chairman Chief Executive Directar ! CFO



[nternational Knitwear Limited

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025
The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

L. The total number of directors are 7 as per thefollowing:

Male: & (Six)
Female: 1 (One)

The composition of board is asfollows:

Category MName
Executive Directors mMr.Naeem Shafi
Mr.aved Khan
Mon-Executive Directors MAr.Waseem Shafi
mAr.Muhammad Shzfi
Independent Directars mAr. Khalid Jamil Siddigi
mAr. Abdullah Ahsan Saleem
Ms. Saleha Majid
Female Director Ms.Saleha Majid

The directars have eonfirmed that none af them is serving as a director on more than seven listed
companies, including this Company

The Company has prepared 8 "Code of Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate steps have
been taken to disseminate it throughout the Company alang with its supporting policies and
procedures,

The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and some
significant policias of the Cemparny. The board has ensured that complete record of partculars of
the significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the
Company.

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions en relevant matters have
been taken by the Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant prowvisions of the Act and
these Regulations.

The mestings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by 2 directar
elected by the Boardforth is purpose. The Beoard has complied with the reguirements of the
Company Act, 2017 and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating
minutes of meeting of the Board.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

] The Board has a formal palicy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accardance with the Act and these Regulations.

9. Four directors are Certified Director and two directors meet the criteria of exemption and are
accordingly exempied from directors” training program. Remaining Director will acguire the
required directors” training certification within the time specified in the Regulations,

10.  The board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer and Compary Secretary, including
their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant
requirements of the regulations.Mr. Salik Sultan was appointed as Comparny secretary during the
yEar;

The position of Head of Internal Audit remained vacant during the year

11, Chiel Financial Officer and Chiel executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before
approval of the Board,

12,  The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

Audit Committes
Mr. Abdullah Ahsan Saleem Chairman Indapendent Directar
Mr. Khalid Jamil Siddigi Member Indapendent Directar
Ms. Saleha Majid Member Independent Director
HR and Remuneration Committes
bdr. Khalid larnil Siddigi Chairman Independent Director
r. Maeem Shafi Member _ Executive Directors
kir. lzved Khan Member Executive Directors

13.

14,

15.

1k,

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committess have been formed, decumented and
advised to the committee far compliance

The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following:

Committee Frequency
Board of Audil Cormmilles Cuarterly
Human Resource and Remuneration Committes Yearly

The Board has not yet setup an internal audit function as required by Regulation 31 of the Listed
Companies [Code of Corporate Governance] Regulations, 2019,

The statutory auditors af the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
ratimg under the Quality Control Rewview program of the Institute of Charersd Accountants of
Fakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are
in compliance with International Federation of Accountants {IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of
the firm invelved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-
dependent children] of the chief executive officer, chief financlal officer, head of Internal audit,
company secretary or director of the company;
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide

other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations ar any other regulatary

requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have aobservec IFAC guidelines in this
regard.

18, We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27,32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations
have been complied with; and

19. Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8,27,32,33
and 36 are below.

1. The Human Resource and Remuneration Committee set-up by the company, is not in line
with the composition required by regulation 28(1) the Companies |Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019,

The Board will reconstitute the HR & Remuneration Committee to ensure compliance with
Regulation 28 in the shortest possible timeframe

2. The Board has not setup an internal audit function as required by regulations 31 of the

Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019,
The Company will setup the Internal Audit Function and will hire head of Internal Audit as
required by the Regulation 31 of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 as soon as the cash flow allows to bear an additional cost.
KHALID JAMIL SIDDI NAEEM SHAFI
Karachi: September 29,2025 Chairman Chief Executive
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INDEFENDENT ALIDITOR'S REVIEW REPDAT TO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDERS OF INTERNATIONAL KNITWEAR LINITED Crariered Accounisns
REVIEW REPORT OM THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED [N LISTED COMPANIES T ——
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERMANCE) REGULATIONS, 2018 Karachi, 75536 Pabkistan

F =03 k505500 1

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies {Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors
of International Knitwear Limited for the year ended June 30, 2025in accordance with the
reguirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations [s that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Qur responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the
status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does
not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is
limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's persannel and review of various documents
prepared by the Company to comply with these Regulations,

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to abtain an understanding of
the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an
effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directars'
statement on internal contral covers all risks and controls ar to form an opinion on the
effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s carporate goverrance procedures and
risks.

The Regulations reqguire the Company to place before the Auwdit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directars for their review
and approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured
compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions
by the Board of Directors upan recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, except for the above instancels) of non-compliance, nothing has come to
our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not
appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements
contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company far the year ended June 30, 2025.

Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirement(s) of the
Regulations as reflected in the paragraph reference where these are stated in the statement of
Compliance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT TO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDERS OF INTERNATIONAL KNITWEAR LIMITED Crariered Accounisns
REVIEW REPORT OMN THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED CORAPAMIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERN ANCE] REGULATIONS, 2019

5. Nature of Paragraph Description of the Non-Compliance

No Reguirement Reference

i. Explanatory The Human Resource and Remuneration
Committee set-up by the company, is not in line
with the compaosition required by regulation
28(1)the  Companies  [Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019,

ii. Explanatory 15 & 19{l) | The Board has not setup an internal audit function

as required by regulations 31 of the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019.

UM Aoy %M.?«.éﬂ)a‘_

Chartered Accountants

Karachi.

Date: October 01, 2025
UDIN:CR202510238MMuRESAGE
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

MNotice is here by given that the 35™ Annual General MMeeting of the Company will be held
on Monday, Octaber 27, 2025, at 03:30 p.m, at F - 28 / L, 51T.E, Karachi, to transact the
following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Aodited Annual Financial Statements of the

Company together with Director’'s and Auditor’s Reports for the vear ended June 20,
2025.

As required under Section 223 of the Companies Act 2017 and in terms of 5SRO MNo.
A89(1}/2023 datedMarch 21, 2023, the Annual Report, including the Motice of Meeting
and Financial Statements of theCompany has been transmitted to the shareholders
and uploaded an the website of the Company which can be viewed using the following
link or QR enable code:

htps:/fiil.cam.plgfen/pagefinvestars financial-information

2. To declare and approve the final cash dividend @ 10% i.e. PER 1.0 per share,as
recommended by the Board of Directors for the year ended June 30, 2025,

3. Toappoint statutory Auditors and fix their remuneration for the year ending June 30,
2026. The retiring Auditors, MM/s. RSM Awvais Hyder LUaguat Mauman, Chartered
Accountants, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment.

4, To transact any other ordinary business which may legally be transacted at an Annual
General Meeting, with the permission of the Chair.

By Order of the Board

Karachi, October 06, 2025 Salik Sultan

Company Secretary
NOTES:

1. CLOSURE OF SHARE TRANSFER BOOEKS

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from Octobear 20, 202%, to October 27, 2025
tboth days inclusive) for the purpose of the AGM and payment of the Final Cash dividend.

Transfer requests received by CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, CODC House, 939-B, Block “B”,
SM.CHS, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400. Tel: 0800-23275, UAMN: 111-111-500, Email:
info@ecdesrsl.com, at the close of business on October 19, 2025, will be treated in time for the

purpose of determining the abowve entitlement to the transferees for payment of cash dividend
and to attend the AGHM.
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2. PARTICIPATION IN THE AGM VIA THE VIDEO CONFERENCING FACILITY:

The shareholders can now participate in the AGM proceedings via video link. Those members who
are willing to attend and participate in the AGM via video link are requested to register
themselves by sending an email along with the following particulars and a valid copy of both sides
of CNIC at Javed@internationalknitwear.com with the subject of ‘Registration for AGM' not less
than 48 hours before the time of the meeting:

Mame of Shareholder CNIC Mo. Falio No_fCDC Mobile No. Email Address
Account Mo.

Members who are registered after the necessary verification, as outlined above, will receive a
password-protected video link via email from the Company to ensure compliance with quorum
requirements. The link will be active from 3:20 p.m. on the day of the AGM until the meeting
concludes,

3. ATTENDING AGM AND APPOINTMENT OF PROXY

A. & Member entitled to attend, speak and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to
appointanother member as his/her proxy to attend, speak and vote on his/aer behalf.

B. An instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or ather authority under which it
is signed, or a notarised, certified copy of the power or authority, must be deposited at the
registered office of theCompany at least 48 hours before the time of the meeting. Form of Proxy is
enclosed.

C. COC Account Holders will further have to follow the under-mentioned guidelines as laid down in
Circularl dated January 26, 2000, issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

i) For Attending AGIM

d. In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder whose securities and their
registrationdetails are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall produce proof of his / her identity by
showing theirComputerized Mational Identity Card (CNIC) at the time of attending the meeting.

b. In case of a corporate entity, a Board of Directars’ resolution/power of attorney with specimen
signatureof the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of the
Mesting.

ii) For Appointing Proxy
a. In the case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder whose registration details
areuploaded as per COC regulations shall submit the Proxy Form as per the above requirement.

b. Attested copies of the CNIC of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the
ProxyForm, The proxy shall produce his original CNIC at the time of the meeting.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

4.

7.

Mandatory Information (Email, CNIC, IBAN and Zakat Declaration)

A, In compliance with Section 119 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Regulation 19
Companies [(GeneralProvisions and Forms) Regulations, 2018 members are
requested to immediately provide theirmandatory information such as CHIC
number, updated mailing address, email, contactmaoabile/telephone number and
International Bank Account Number (IBAN) together with a copy of theirCNIC ta
update our records and to avoid any non-compliance of the law. Otherwise, all
dividends will bewithheld in terms of Regulation & of the Companies (Distribution
of Dividends) Regulatians, 2017;

*  For physical shares to M/s CDC Share Registrar Services Limited
*  For shares in CD5 to COC Investors Afc Services or respective participant

B. Members are reguested to submit a declaration {CZ-50) as per £Lakat & Ushr
Ordinance 1980 for zakatexemption and advise an address change, if any.

E-Dividend

Ag per Section 242 of the Act it is mandalory Tor the public listed companies lo pay cash
dividends to its sharehalders only through electronic mode, directly into a bank account
designated by the entitled sharehaolders.

Therefore, through this notice, all shareholders are requested to update their bank account
Mo. [IBAN]) and details in the Central Depository System through respective participants. In
case of physical shares, provide bank account detalls to our Share Registrar, MJ/s CDC Share
Registrar Services Limited. Please ensure a nearly update of yaur particulars to avoid any
inconvenience. The e-Dividend mandate form is enclosed.

Unclaimed Dividends and Bonus Shares

Shareholders, wha for any reason could nat claim their dividend and/or bonus shares, are
advized o conmtact our Shares Registrar, Mfs CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, to
collectfenguire about their unclaimed dividends and Jor bonus shares if any.

Filer and Mon-Filer Status

il The Government of Pakistan, through the Finance Act, 2025, in Section 150 of the Income Tax

Ordinance, 2001, prescribed the following rates for withhaolding tax against dividend
paymeants by the companies;

a) For filers of income tax returns = 15%
b) Far nan-flers of incarme tax returns — 30%

PMembers whose names are not entered into the Active Taxpayers List (ATL) provided by the
FERwebsite, although they are filers, are advised to make sure that their names are entered
inta the ATL toavoid higher tax deductions against dividends.
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il}  For any query/problem/information, the investors may contact the Share Registrar at the
following phone numbers or email addresses:

M/s CDC Share Registrar Services Limited CDC House, 99-B, Block B, 5.M.C.H.5, Shahrah-e-
Faisal, Karachi Customer Support Service No's: +92-080023275 E-mail :infoi@cdcsrsl.com

ili) Corporate sharehaolders having COC accounts are required to have their Mational Tax Number
(NTN) updated with their respective participants, whereas corporate physical shareholders
should send a copy of their NTM certificate to the Share Registrar, i.e., M/s CDC Share
Registrar Services Limited. Theshareholders, while sending MTM or NTN certificates, as the
case may be, must quote the company name and their respective folio number.

8. Conversion of Physical Shares into Book-Entry Form

As per Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017, all existing companies zre required to convert
their physical shares into book-entry form within a period not exceeding four years from the

date of commencement of the Companies Act, 2017.

The Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan, through its circular # CSD/ED/Misc./2016-
639-640 dated March 26, 2021, has advised the listed companies to pursue their members
who still hold shares in physical form to convert their shares into hook-entry farm.

We hereby request all such members of International Industries Limited who are holding
shares in physical form to convert thelr shares into book-entry form at the earliest. They are
also suggested to contact theCentral Depository Company of Pakistan Limited or any active
member/stock broker of the Pakistan Stock Exchange to open an account in the Central
Depositary System to facilitate the conversion of physical shares into beok-entry form.
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS AT JUNE 30, 2025

# Of Shareholders Shareholdings'Slab Total Shares Held
334 1 to 100 8,928
243 101 ta 500 63,019
623 501 to 1000 353,191
111 1001 to 5000 264,459

36 5001 to 10000 288,217
9 10001 to 15000 109,553
8 15001 to 20000 142 310
& 20001 to 25000 182,537
2 25001 to 30000 55,398
2 35001 to 40000 79,468
1 40001 to 45000 43,500
1 45001 to 50000 49718
1 50001 to 55000 53,750
2 £5001 to 70000 130,141
1 130001 to 135000 132,225
1 200001 to 205000 200,258
1 365001 to 370000 368,571
2 420001 to 425000 850,000
1 425001 to 430000 430,000
1 550001 to 555000 552,612
1 640001 to 645000 41,654
1 830001 to 835000 832,153
1 450001 to 955000 951,815
1 870001 to 975000 972,400
1 1915001 to 1920000 1,919,083

1393 9,675,000
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS AT JUNE 30, 2025
Categories of Shareholders Shareholders  Shares Held Percentage
|Directars, Chief Executive Officer and their spouse{s] and minar children
WASEEM A SHAF| 4 74,5132 0.77
HLURAIRA SHAF 4 52,500 1005
BUSHRA SHAF 2 1800 0.08
MNAEEM AHMED SHAFI 2 1219120 15984
SALEHA MAJID 1 750 0.01
KHALID JARIL SITHCH 1 18,500 019
ABDULLAH AHSAN SALEEW 1 10, 00 0,10
RLHARM A0 SHAFI 1 425,000 4,39
JAVED KHAN 1 H.085 .08
Assaciated Companies, undertakings and related parties
IHIT & ICP
|Banks Development Financlal Instituticons, Mon Banking Financial Financial Institutions, 1 &7 0.00
(Insurance Companies
|Modarabas and Mutual Funds 1 02,00 0.41
|General Public
3. Logal 1,357 5,213,103 5388
b. Foraign g 72,855 0.75%
[Fareign Companies
Others 10 $12.034 .43
Totals 1,393 4,575,000 100.00
Share holders halding 10% or more Shares Held Percentage
HUMAIRA SHAFI 72,500 10,05
WAEER AHIED SHAFI 1,519,120 19.84
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS AT JUNE 30, 2025

= Folic® Hame of sharchalder Pumbzr of sharss | Percentage
i i W ASEERA A SHAFI LT ATY [ 5
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% 10 HURAI LA SHAF 1040 3,00
E Q3277-97487 HUBA& LS SHAF 972,400 10.05
7 20 BUSHRS SHAFI 3,870 a.04
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E-DIVIDEND MANDATE FORM

T

Subject: Bank account detail for payment of Dividend through electronic mode,
Dear Sir,

I, Mr./Mrs. /s

£/0./0fO W0

hereby authorize International Knitwear Limited to directly credit cash dividend declared by it, if any, in the
below mentioned bank account.

(i} Shareholder's Detail

Marme of the Sharehalder

Folio Mo./COC Participants ID &/C Mo,

CHIC Mo, ==

Passport No. {in case of foreign Sharehold prj*+*
Land Line Phone Number

Cell Number

(i) Shareholder's Bank Detail
Title of Bank Account

Bank Account Mumber

Bank 's Namsa

Branch Mame and Address

It s stated that the above-mentioned information is correct and that | will intimate the changes in the
ahove mentioned informatian to the Company and the concerned Share Registrar as soon as these accur.

Signature of the Shareholder

Motes:

Tha Skaraholdars havwng physical shares have O address the Corgany Seoralary L om the agdres givan Dabow

Th: Cormgsry Seeretaryd

Iries et onal Eribveear Limted

Fa-AJLELTE

Earachi

and Sharshaldar: hwnn B ecroun bl wiln G DS Ghoe Regiciror B4 rviges Lirmited Rouse 5 commonicats mireate intarsatian BSr [ stk Bach

"V pynm mttach attested pholocopy of the CHIC
"M panp mitach atbested gt ooy of the P
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[nternational Knitwear Limited

FORM OF PROXY
35th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

I'We son/daaghterwife husband of . Sharcholder of

Intemnational Knitwear Limited, holding ordinary shares herchy appoint

wha is my [state relationship (if any) with the proxy; requred by Government

regulations] and the son £ danghter S wite / husband of , (holding

ordinary shares in the Company under Folio No. ) [required by Government] as my
{ our proxy, to attend and vote for me 7 us and on my ¢ our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of

the Company o be held on Ogtober 2Tth, 2025 and ¢ or any adjourmment thereofl

Sipned this day of 2025,
Falio CTC Participant CDC Account Mo of
T, 1D M. | Sub-Account No. Shares held
Slgnature over
Revenue Stamp
Rs. 100-
Witness 1 Wilmess 2
Signarmre Signature
MName Name
CNIC Mo, CNIC Mo,
Address Address

Motes: 1, The proxy must be a member of the Campany

2. The signature must tally with the specimen signatures registered with the compainy.

3. Ifa proxy is granted by a member who has deposited hisfher shares n CDC Share
Registrar Services Limited | the prosy must be accompanied with
participant’s ID number and {0C accountdsub-account number along with attasted
photocopies of Computerized Mational Identity Card {CMIC) or the Passport of the
beneficial owner. Representatives of corporate members should bring the uswal
documents required for such purpose,

4. The instrument of Proxy praperly completed shauld be deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company nol less than 48 hours before the time of the mesting
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International Knitwear Limited
F-28JL, 5..T.E., karchi- TAT30 Paldstan
Phones; 32571483, 32574302-04
Fone (021) 32564414
Mot wwwsnfemctionalknibweorn.com



